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Dear Valued Shareholder:

Fiscal 2004 was a year of progress for CompCare. Having reached a settlement with the Internal Revenue Service
for a matter in the previous fiscal year, we were able to strengthen our balance sheet and acquire additional capital
from investors, putting CompCare in a better position to pursue market expansion opportunities. Our expansion
efforts resulted in new business in 2 states. An existing client in Michigan selected CompCare to manage behavioral
health benefits for membership in California. Also, with the resolution of State budget issues in Texas, all three of
our former Children’s Health Insurance Program (CHIP) contracts were reinstated and one additional CHIP contract
was awarded by a new client. We are proud of these accomplishments and confident that our reputation in the
industry for unparalleled customer service will make possible other expansion opportunities among existing and
prospective clients.

Creating innovative solutions in response to the changing healthcare industry was a key element in our growth
strategy for 2004. While we remained focused on our commitment to exceed client expectations and to provide the
highest quality of behavioral health services, we also concentrated marketing efforts on new product development.
We are excited about the new possibilities associated with our Integrated Behavioral Health (IBH) product. The
integration of behavioral health services into medical management services represents an important and growing
area of opportunity for clients and prospective clients to manage cost and enhance the quality of care for their
members. We expect our IBH product to provide savings for the client and better care for the individual through
improved communication between all parties involved in treatment.

We are also enthusiastic about the new opportunities we can explore as a result of the successful completion of our
Behavioral Health Pharmacy Management Program beta test in Michigan during 2004. This program involved
providing prior authorization for a health plan’s pharmacy benefits related to behavioral health. The strategies
CompCare uses in this program allow our clients to maximize benefits from recent innovations while achieving the
most cost-effective use of their pharmacy dollar. Though the program was tailored for a Michigan Health Plan, the
core principles and practices are valid in every state and in every population. We will continue to market this
Behavioral Health Pharmacy Management to current and prospective clients in 2005.

Strengthening and expanding current client relationships, improving core services and developing new, innovative
approaches to behavioral healthcare will be our focus for fiscal 2005. Our efforts are underway with a new strategic
service agreement that allowed CompCare to purchase vision plans for integration with our sales to behavioral
health customers. Industry experts have noted that early detection of vision irregularities is a significant factor in
school and home behavior. This initiative is but one strategy to fully integrate physical and behavioral medicine.
Further disease management initiatives will focus on lowering medical costs through extensive coordination of
medical and behavioral healthcare.

We appreciate the support of our shareholders and we continue to work hard to enhance the value of their
investments. Everyone at CompCare possesses a distinct drive and positive attitude that shape how we are
perceived as a company. We want our shareholders to know that we are determined to move CompCare forward in
size and scope. We look forward to an exciting year ahead.

I L e Y - oo

Mary Jane Johnson Robert J. Landis
President and Chief Executive Officer, Chairman, Chief Financial Officer,
and Director and Treasurer
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COMPREHENSIVE CARE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

PART1

'

ITEM 1. BUSINESS .

ORGANIZATIONAL HISTORY ™,

Comprehensive Cﬁa,n':,:,Corporation® (referred to herein as the “Company”, “CompCare” ®Y, “we”, “our” or “us”) is a

Delaware quporation(orggﬁi‘zed in 1969. Unless the context otherwise requires, all references to the Company include the
Company’s principal operating subsidiary, Comprehensive Behavioral Care, Inc.SM® (“CBC”) and subsidiary corporations.

CompCare, through its operating subsidiaries, manages the delivery of psychiatric and substance abuse services to
commercial, Medicare, and Medicaid members on behalf of employers, health plans, including health maintenance organizations
(“HMOs”) and preferred provider organizations (“PPOs”), government organizations, third-party claims administrators, and
commercial and other group purchasers of behavioral healthcare services. Current services include a broad spectrum of inpatient
and outpatient mental health and substance abuse therapy, counseling, and supportive interventions.

BUSINESS GENERAL

The services we provide are delivered through management service agreements (“MSOs”), administrative service
agreements (“ASOs”), and capitated contracts. MSOs and ASOs are contractual obligations under which the Company does not
assume any financial risk or responsibility for the member’s behavioral health care costs. We may provide various managed care
functions under MSO and ASO arrangements, including clinical care management, provider network development, customer
service, claims processing, and information systems reporting. The scope of services under MSO arrangements is slightly
narrower in comparison to those services we perform under ASO arrangements. Under capitated contracts, the primary payer of
healthcare services prepays us a fixed, per member per month fee for covered psychiatric and substance abuse services regardless
of actual member utilization and the Company assumes the financial risk for the member’s behavioral health care costs.
Programs are contracted through inpatient facilities as well as through experienced outpatient practitioners.

We currently manage programs through which services are provided to recipients in fifteen states. Current programs
and services include fully integrated, capitated behavioral healthcare services, Employee Assistance Programs (“EAPs”), case
management/utilization review services, administrative services management, provider sponsored health plan development,
behavioral corrections programs, preferred provider network development, management and physician advisor reviews and
overall care management services. We also provide prior and concurrent authorization for physician-prescribed psychotropic
medications for a major Medicaid HMO in Michigan under that state's mandated pharmacy management program. Members are
generally directed to CompCare by their employer, health plan, or physician and receive an initial authorization for an
assessment. Based upon the initial assessment, a treatment plan is established for the member. Fully integrated capitated lives
(i.e. where the company has contractual, financial risk) totaled approximately 698,000 and 789,000 at May 31, 2004 and 2003,
respectively. Combined MSO and ASO lives were approximately 370,000 and 337,000 at May 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.
EAP lives were approximately 2,000 at May 31, 2004 and 2003.

Our objective is to provide easily accessible, high quality behavioral healthcare services and products and to manage
costs through measures such as the monitoring of hospital inpatient admissions and the review of authorizations for various types
of outpatient therapy. The goal is to combine access to quality behavioral healthcare services with effective management
controls in order to ensure the most cost-effective use of healthcare resources.

SOURCES OF REVENUE

We provide managed behavioral healthcare and substance abuse services to recipients, primarily through subcontracts
with HMOs who have historically carved out these functions to managed behavioral healthcare organizations like CompCare.
We generally receive a negotiated amount on a per member per month or capitated basis in exchange for providing these
services. We then contract directly with behavioral healthcare providers who receive a pre-determined, fee-for-service rate or
case rate. Behavioral healthcare providers inciude psychiatrists, clinical psychologists, therapists, other licensed healthcare
professionals, and hospitals. As of May 31, 2004, we have approximately 10,000 behavioral healthcare practitioners in our
network who are primarily located in the five states in which the Company has its principal contracts. Under such full-risk
capitation arrangements, profit is a function of utilization and the amount of claims payments made to our network providers.
Alternatively, we may subcontract with a provider company on a sub-capitated basis. In cases where we have made sub-

() CompCare is a registered trademark of Comprehensive Care Corporation.
@ Comprehensive Behavioral Care, Inc. is a registered service mark of the Company.
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COMPREHENSIVE CARE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

capitation arrangements, the outside company manages service delivery through CompCare’s approved and credentialed network
that is guided by stringent quality standards.

During Fiscal 2004, we provided services under capitated arrangements for commercial, Medicare, Medicaid, and
Children’s Health Insurance Program (“CHIP”) patients in Florida and Texas, commercial and Medicaid patients in Michigan,
Medicaid patients in California and Connecticut, and commercial patients in Arizona, Georgia, Indiana, Kentucky, Minnesota,
New York, North Carolina, Chio, South Carolina, and Wisconsin.

In Fiscal 2004, our new business included one new CHIP client in Texas, one new Medicaid contract in Michigan, and
one new Medicaid client in California. We perform periodic reviews of our current client contracts to determine profitability. In
the event a contract is not profitable, we may seek to revise the terms of the contract or to terminate the agreement in accordance
with the specific contract terms.

GROWTH STRATEGY

Our objective is to expand our presence in both existing and new managed behavioral healthcare markets by obtaining
new contracts with health plans, corporations, government agencies, and other payers through CompCare’s reputation of
providing quality managed behavioral healthcare services with the most cost-effective use of healthcare resources. Our principal
means for pursuing public sector business is through the submission of proposals in response to formal, competitive bidding
proceedings that are initiated by health plans or government agencies. We intend, where feasible, to expand our commercial
business during the upcoming fiscal year through new marketing initiatives directed at employer groups and, also, HMOs that
contract directly with employers. Additionally, we continue to develop and market new stand-alone products to prospective and
existing customers. Pharmacy management and specific disease management are two such current examples. The success of our
growth strategy is dependent upon our ability to competitively bid on new contracts, comply with conditions contained in
requests for proposals, obtain required licenses, if any, in new markets, establish provider networks in new markets and negotiate
favorable agreements with our providers.

COMPETITION

The behavioral healthcare industry is very competitive and provides products and services that are price sensitive. We
believe that there are approximately 150 managed behavioral healthcare companies providing service for an estimated 227
million covered lives in the United States. Several competitors have revenues, financial resources, and membership substantially
larger than ours. We believe that our largest competitor, Magellan Health Services, Inc., has approximately 25% of the market
based on the number of covered lives. We also compete with small local and regional companies at times. Competition is built
around pricing, the overall quality of service provided, the extent and quality of the provider network, and the technical capacity
of the behavioral healthcare organization.

GOVERNMENT REGULATION
REGULATORY MONITORING AND COMPLIANCE

CompCare is subject to extensive and evolving state and federal regulations relating to the nation’s mental health
system as well as changes in Medicaid and Medicare reimbursement that could have an effect on the profitability of our
contracts. These regulations range from licensure and compliance with regulations related to insurance companies and other risk-
assuming entities, to licensure and compliance with regulations related to healthcare providers. These laws and regulations may
vary considerably among states. As a result, CompCare may be subject to the specific regulatory approach adopted by each state
for regulation of managed care companies and for providers of behavioral healthcare treatment services. The Company holds
licenses or certificates to perform utilization review and third party administrator (“TPA”) services in certain states. Certain of
the services provided by our managed behavioral healthcare subsidiaries may be subject to such licensing requirements in other
states. There can be no assurance that additional utilization review or TPA licenses will not be required or, if required, that
CompCare will qualify to obtain such licenses. In many states, entities that assume risk under contract with licensed insurance
companies or health plans who retain ultimate financial responsibility have not been considered by state regulators to be
conducting an insurance or HMO business. As a result, we have not sought licensure as either an insurer or HMO in certain
states. If the regulatory positions of these states were to change, our business could be materially affected until such time as
CompCare meets the regulatory requirements. Currently, we cannot quantify the potential effects of additional regulation of the
managed care industry, but such costs will have an adverse effect on future operations to the extent that they are not able to be
recouped in future managed care contracts.




COMPREHENSIVE CARE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

As of May 31, 2004, we managed approximately 780,000 lives in connection with behavioral and substance abuse
services covered through Medicaid and/or CHIPs in California, Connecticut, Florida, Michigan and Texas. Any changes in
Medicaid funding could ultimately affect our reimbursement and overall profitability.

The Company is subject to the requirements of the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996
(“HIPAA”). The purpose of the HIPAA provisions is to improve the efficiency and effectiveness of the healthcare system
through standardization of the electronic data interchange of certain administrative and financial transactions and, also, to protect
the security and privacy of protected health information. Entities subject to HIPAA include some healthcare providers and all
healthcare plans. To meet the specific requirements of HIPAA, the Company recently determined it needed to make a significant
investment in its current information system or in a new information system that would better meet the Company’s future needs
(see “Management Information Systems” below).

ACCREDITATION

To develop standards that effectively evaluate the structure and function of medical and quality management systems in
managed care organizations, the National Committee on Quality Assurance, (‘“NCQA”) has developed an extensive review and
development process in conjunction with the managed care industry, healthcare purchasers, state regulators, and consumers. The
Standards for Accreditation of Managed Behavioral Healthcare Organizations (‘“MBHOs”) used by NCQA reviewers to evaluate
an MBHO address the following areas: quality improvement; utilization management; credentialing; members’ rights and
responstibilities; and preventative-care. These standards validate that an MBHO is founded on principles of quality and is
continuously improving the clinical care and services it provides. NCQA utilizes Health Plan Employer Data and Information
Set (“HEDIS”), which is a core set of performance measurements developed to respond to complex but clearly defined employer
needs as standards for patient care and customer satisfaction. CompCare’s Southeast Region operation was awarded a one-year
NCQA accreditation in July 1999 and Full Accreditation in December 2001.  Effective July 22, 2002, CompCare’s Full
Accreditation award extends the NCQA accreditation to July 22, 2005 and covers membership in Connecticut, Florida, Georgia,
Indiana and Michigan. Full Accreditation is granted for a period of three years to those plans that have excellent programs for
continuous quality improvement and that meet NCQA's rigorous standards.

We believe our NCQA accreditation is beneficial to our clients and their members we serve. Additionally, NCQA
accreditation may be an important consideration to our prospective clients.

MANAGEMENT INFORMATION SYSTEMS

We are implementing a new managed care information system designed to streamline our clinical and claims
operations and offer significant service improvements to our providers. The new software will feature state of the art decision
aids to enhance the patient treatment process beginning with member assessment and initial authorization and continuing through
claims payment and encounter evaluation. The system will connect all CompCare locations to a virtual private network (VPN)
technology telecommunications network, aliowing automated call-path routing for overlapping coverage during peak call times.
We believe this system will readily support continued growth and meet our future business needs. The total cost of the system,
which is expected to be implemented by early 20035, will be approximately $370,000 of which $190,000 has already been paid to
our vendor.

In August 2004, we began converting our wide-area network from frame relay technology to VPN technology. We
expect to complete this conversion in September 2004. The VPN network will significantly improve the speed and security of
connections between our regional offices and reduce telecommunications costs by allowing voice telephone calls between our
offices to be made over the computer network. Certain provider partners will have limited access to our network resources, and
remote user access will improve as well. We expect to recoup the costs of the network improvements during Fiscal 2005,

ADMINISTRATION AND EMPLOYEES

Our executive and administrative offices are located in Tampa, Florida, where we maintain operations, business
development, accounting, reporting and information systems, and provider and member service functions. Provider management,
account management, and certain clinical and utilization management functions are performed at our Connecticut, Michigan, and
Texas locations. We currently employ approximately 80 full-time and 15 part-time employees.

MARKETING AND SALES

Our business development staff is responsible for generating new sales leads and for preparing proposals and responses
to formal commercial and public sector Requests for Proposals (“RFPs™). The Company’s Chief Development Officer manages
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COMPREHENSIVE CARE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

marketing initiatives, under the supervision of the Company’s President and Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”). Regional and
administrative operations personnel strengthen the Company’s marketing efforts by providing a local presence. Sales
expectations are integrated into the performance requirements for executive staff and local sales personnel.

AVAILABLE INFORMATION

The Company’s stockholder website is www.compcare-shareholders.com. The Company makes available free of
charge, through a link to the Securities and Exchange Commission’s (“SEC™) internet site our annual, quarterly, and current
reports, and any amendments to these reports, as well as any beneficial ownership reports of officers and directors filed
electronically on Forms 3, 4, and 5. All such reports will be available as soon as reasonably practicable after electronically filing
such reports with the SEC. Information contained on our website or linked through our website is not part of this report on Form
10-K.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Corporate governance is typically defined as the system that allocates duties and authority among a company's
stockholders, board of directors and management. The stockholders elect the board and vote on extraordinary matters; the board
is the company's governing body, responsible for hiring, overseeing and evaluating management, particularly the CEQO; and
management runs the company's day-to-day operations. Qur certificate of incorporation provides for a staggered board of five
directors separated into three classes. Our Board of Directors currently consists of four directors. The Company is in an ongoing
process to try to fill the one remaining vacancy. The current Board members include two independent directors. The primary
responsibilities of the Board of Directors are oversight, counseling and direction to the Company's management in the long-term
interests of the Company and its stockholders. The Board's detailed responsibilities include: (a) selecting, regularly evaluating
the performance of, and approving the compensation of the CEO and other senior executives; (b) reviewing and, where
appropriate, approving the Company's major financial objectives, strategic and operating plans and actions; (c) overseeing the
conduct of the Company's business to evaluate whether the business is being properly managed; and (d) overseeing the processes
for maintaining the Company's integrity with regard to its consolidated financial statements and other public disclosures and
compliance with law and ethics. The Board of Directors has delegated to the CEO, working with the Company's other executive
officers, the authority and responsibility for managing the Company's business in a manner consistent with the Company's
standards and practices, and in accordance with any specific plans, instructions or directions of the Board. The CEO and
management are responsible for seeking the advice and, in appropriate situations, the approval of the Board with respect to
extraordinary actions to be undertaken by the Company.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES
We do not own any real property. The following table sets forth certain information regarding our leased properties as of

May 31, 2004. All leases are triple net leases, under which CompCare bears all costs of operations, including insurance, taxes,
and utilities.

Monthly
Lease Base Rent
Name and Location Expires (in Dollars)
Corporate Headquarters, Regional, Administrative, and Other
Offices
Tampa, Florida, Corporate Headquarters and Southeastern
Regional 0ffiCes.....cvivioiieiiiiriii et 2006 $ 23,507
Grand Prairie, TEXAS ....ccoiereiiis e cieeervi e scseeeesesereesraesessensaesasssssses 2005 6,474
Bloomfield Hills, Michigan ........c.cccocooriecinciieincniccnece 2005 7,680

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

From time to time, the Company and its subsidiaries may be parties to and their property is subject to ordinary, routine
litigation incidental to their business, in which case claims may exceed insurance policy limits and the Company or any one of its
subsidiaries may have exposure to a liability that is not covered by insurance. Management is not aware of any such lawsuits that
could have a material adverse impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.




COMPREHENSIVE CARE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS
During the fourth quarter of the fiscal year covered by this report, no matters were submitted to a vote of security holders
of the Company.
PART II

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR COMPANY’S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND
ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Our Common Stock is traded on the Over The Counter Bulletin Board (*OTC-BB”) under the symbol CHCR.‘ The
following table sets forth the range of high and low closing prices for the Common Stock, as reported by the OTC-BB,
for the fiscal quarters indicated:

Price

FISCAL YEAR HiGH Low

2004 FIRST QUARTER $3.00 2.15
SECOND QUARTER 240 1.46
THIRD QUARTER 2.02 1.35
FOURTH QUARTER 1.80 1.15

2003 FIRST QUARTER 1.65 0.75
SECOND QUARTER 1.01 0.32
THIRD QUARTER ' 2.38 0.65
FOURTH QUARTER 3.05 2.01

(a) As of August 20, 2004, the Company had 1,408 common stockholders of record.

(b) The Company did not pay any cash dividends on its Common Stock during any quarter of Fiscal 2004, 2003, or 2002
and does not contemplate the initiation of payment of any cash dividends in the foreseeable future (see ITEM 7.
“MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS”).

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Prior to Fiscal 1993, CompCare principally engaged in the ownership, operation, and management of psychiatric and
substance abuse programs in company owned, leased, or unaffiliated hospitals. During Fiscal 1999, we completed our plan to
dispose of our hospital business segment. Fiscal 2004 results include a $387,000 charge related to such discontinued operations
(see Note 9 — “Discontinued Operations™ to the audited, consolidated financial statements).

Fiscal 2003 results include a $7.7 million, non-operating gain related to the IRS settlement (see Note 12 — “Income
Taxes” to the audited, consolidated financial statements). Additionally, Fiscal 2003 results included a $470,000 gain included in
discontinued operations, related to the settlement of one matter involving Medi-Cal reimbursements paid to Brea
Neuropsychiatric Hospital, a facility owned by the Company until its disposal in fiscal year 1991, covering fiscal periods from
1983 through 1986.

The selected consolidated financial data that follows should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial
statements and accompanying notes appearing elsewhere in this report. Reclassifications of prior year amounts have been made
to conform to the current year’s presentation.
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Year Ended May 31,
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS DATA: 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
(Amounts in thousands, except per share data)
OPErating FEVEMUES ..........co..cerieriierriirienerererienieeneesoveseseaeesennas $ 27,583 § 32,104 $ 27,625 $ 18,192 § 17,442
Costs and expenses:
Healthcare operating eXpenses ...........ceceveererercriecirecnieannanas 24,178 29,201 24,625 15,326 15,801
General and administrative eXpenses ..........ccccoveevecveverriveevianas 3,385 3,459 3,544 3,842 6,974
Provision for (recovery of) doubtful accounts...........cooccceeenene, @) 20 (112) (439) (606)
Depreciation and amortization ..........cc.cocervvcersirenneenrnnneneans 107 195 342 656 794
Restructuring eXpenses......c.coveeviveorerrereccrrnrenecrerenentnnessrnnns - -- -- 30) 831
27,663 32.875 28,399 19.355 23,794
Operating loss from continuing operations before items shown
DEIOW ...ttt ettt e (80) 771) (774) (1,163) (6,352)
Other income (expenses):
Net gain on IRS settlement ... -- 7,717 -- -- --
Loss in connection with prepayment of note receivable........... (20) - -- (496) -
Gain on sale Of ASSELS ..ocvivviiveeireicrieeiee e -- 4 - - 9
Loss on sale of @SSEtS .....ocvecvervirirviieireecee e -- 5) - - ')
Other non operating iNCOME ........ovvreiicceccn s 1 34 40 332 204
INErest INCOME ... cocoeviiriierereeeee et n e 26 47 88 163 399
INLEreSt BXPEISE ...cevveveeviee ettt s eaaas (215) (181) 173 (203) (289)
(Loss) income from continuing operations before income taxes (288) 6,845 (824) (1,372) (6,030)
INCOME tAX EXPEISE c.vveviiiieiriiesiiiiericrre ettt et se e 102 _20 1 35 13
(Loss) income from continuing operations............c.c..cooovneeee. (390) 6,825 (825) (1,407) (6,043)
(Loss) income from discontinued operations .......................... (387 _633 - _290 _277
(Loss) income before cumulative effect of change in accounting
PrANCIPIE......eiiiei e e a17) 7,458 (825) (1,117) (5,766)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle ............. _ - _ - _55 .- _ -
Net (loss) income attributable to common stockholders ........ $ (@7 $ 148 § (7720) $ QLU $ (5.766)
(Loss) income per common share - basic:
{(Loss) income from continuing operations...........eoocevevveirerveenrenereueens $ (0.09) $ 175§ (©021) $ (037) $§ (1.58)
(Loss) income from discontinued operations ..........cc.coceeveeeevcvreeruenenes (0.09) 0.16 -- 0.08 0.07
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle..........ccoceveneniene - - 0.01 - —
Net (10S5) INCOME......c.oeeveieeieecceee ettt ettt anee e § (018) $ 191 § (200 $ (029 § (L3
(Loss) income per common share - diluted:
(Loss) income from continuing Operations...........coovvivvvvererveveerveraeees $ (009 % 1.57 $ (©21) $ (037 § (1.58)
(Loss) income from discontinued operations .......c..c.ccocvcvvvvnciennnene (0.09) 0.15 -- 0.08 0.07
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle..........cocooereene. - - 0.01 - _ -
Net (1085) INCOME....uvvveivirerireiririseirseiresreseire s esesrere st sessesesesseens $ @18 $ L1L72 § (@200 & (0299 § (Lib
BALANCE SHEET DATA:
Working capital defiCit.........ococovmirnnnvnnnr e $ (4,098 $ @.447) § (12,275) $ (1,770) $ (12,245)
TOAl @SSELS ....u ettt et e s 6,225 6,379 11,399 9,754 21,275
Total long-term debt and capital lease obligations ...........cc........... 2,364 2,298 2,264 2,244 2,244
Stockholders’ defiCit..........coevriniririniiiccrr e $ 4,725) § (4,990) $ (12,519) $ (1L,778) $& (10,672)
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

This Annual Report on Form 10-K includes forward-looking statements, the realization of which may be
impacted by certain important factors discussed below under “Risk Factors -- Important Factors Related to Forward-
Looking Statements and Associated Risks.”

OVERVIEW

Comprehensive Care Corporation is a Delaware Corporation organized in 1969. The Company, primarily
through its wholly owned subsidiary, Comprehensive Behavioral Care, Inc., provides managed care services in the
behavioral health and psychiatric fields, which is its only operating segment. The Company manages the delivery of
a continuum of psychiatric and substance abuse services to commercial, Medicare, and Medicaid members on behalf
of employers, health plans, government organizations, third-party claims administrators, and commercial and other
group purchasers of behavioral healthcare services. The managed care operations include administrative service
agreements, fee-for-service agreements, and capitation contracts. The customer base for its services includes both
corporate and governmental entities. The Company’s services are provided primarily by unrelated vendors on a
subcontract or subcapitated basis.

GENERAL

For the fiscal year ended May 31, 2004, the Company reported a loss from continuing operations of
$390,000, or $0.09 loss per share (basic and diluted), and a net loss of $777,000, or $0.18 loss per share (basic and
diluted). During the comparable period of the prior fiscal year, the Company recorded a $7,717,000, non-operating
gain resuiting from an IRS settlement and, as a result, reported income from continuing operations of $6,825,000
and net income of $7,458,000, or $1.91 basic income per share ($1.72 diluted income per share).

Due to the recent loss of one major customer in Florida and the temporary reduction in Texas CHIP
revenue that occurred during the months of September 2003 through January 2004, we reduced our staff by
approximately 10% in December 2003. We have since recalled or hired certain staff as a result of the Texas CHIP
business reinstatement in February 2004, but do not expect staffing levels to return to prior existing levels or to
increase other operating costs significantly as a result of this recent event. Additionally, as part of our ongoing
expense reduction program to align costs with expected revenues, we will maintain in effect certain reductions in
operating costs associated with the specific contracts that have terminated or otherwise cannot be supported by
expected revenues.

CONSOLIDATED CONSOLIDATED

OPERATIONS OPERATIONS

FISCAL 2004 FiscAL 2003

Operating revenues ..........c.ccoevevvrerreevneaes $ 27,583 $ 32,104
Healthcare operating expenses................. 24,178 29,201
General and administrative expenses....... 3,385 3,459
Other operating expenses..........c..cc.cocevuee. 100 215
27,663 32,875
Operating 10SS......co.ceveeeecencornininirennes $ 89 § (@

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS —YEAR ENDED MAY 31, 2004 AS COMPARED TO THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31, 2003.

We reported a net loss of $777,000 and an operating loss of $80,000 for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2004
compared to net income of $7.5 million and an operating loss of $771,000 for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2003.
Results for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2003 include a $7.7 million non-operating gain in connection with the IRS
settlement (see Note 12 — “Income Taxes” to the audited, consolidated financial statements) and a $470,000 gain
included in discontinued operations, related to the settlement of one matter involving Medi-Cal reimbursements paid
to Brea Neuropsychiatric Hospital, a facility owned by the Company until its disposal in fiscal year 1991, covering
fiscal periods from 1983 through 1986. For the fiscal year ended May 31, 2003, excluding the $8.2 million, one-
time gains from net income would have resulted in a $729,000 net loss ($0.19 loss per basic and diluted share).
Additionally, Fiscal 2003 results from discontinued operations include $88,000 of revenue related to a favorable
settlement of one hospital cost report and the elimination of a $75,000 reserve for another cost report, both
pertaining to our hospital business segment that was discontinued in Fiscal 1999. Operating revenues decreased by
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14.1%, or $4.5 million, to approximately $27.6 million for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2004 compared to $32.1
million for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2003. Reduced revenues from Texas CHIP contracts and the effect of
terminated contracts in Florida resulted in lower revenues, but were partially offset by increased business in
Connecticut and Texas, and new business in Michigan.

Healthcare operating expenses decreased by approximately $5.0 million, or 17.2%, for the fiscal year ended
May 31, 2004 as compared to the fiscal year ended May 31, 2003. This decrease is directly attributable to the loss of
revenue as described above. Healthcare operating expense as a percentage of operating revenue decreased by 3.3%,
from 91.0% for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2003 to 87.7% for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2004. This decrease
is primarily due to the termination in January 2003 of one major contract that consistently returned a high medical
loss ratio.

General and administrative expenses, which included $122,000 of legal and consulting services incurred in
connection with one unsuccessful bid in Tennessee, decreased by $74,000, or 2.1%, for the fiscal year ended May
31, 2004 as compared to the fiscal year ended May 31, 2003. General and administrative expense as a percentage of
operating revenue increased from 10.8% for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2003 to 12.3% for the fiscal year ended
May 31, 2004 due to the previously described decrease in operating revenue.

Other operating expenses decreased by $115,000 for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2004 compared to the
fiscal year ended May 31, 2003. This decrease is attributable to a reduction in depreciation expense as a result of
specific assets being fully depreciated, and a decrease in bad debt expense.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS — YEAR ENDED MAY 31, 2003 AS COMPARED TO THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31, 2002.

We reported net income of approximately $7.5 million and an operating loss of $771,000 for the fiscal year
ended May 31, 2003 compared to a net loss of $770,000 and an operating loss of $774,000 for the fiscal year ended
May 31, 2002. Results for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2003 include a $7.7 million non-operating gain in
connection with the IRS settlement (see Note 12 — “Income Taxes” to the audited, consolidated financial statements)
and a $470,000 gain included in discontinued operations, related to the settlement of one matter involving Medi-Cal
reimbursements paid to Brea Neuropsychiatric Hospital, a facility owned by the Company until its disposal in fiscal
year 1991, covering fiscal periods from 1983 through 1986. For the fiscal year ended May 31, 2003, excluding the
$8.2 of one-time gains from net income would have resulted in a $729,000 net loss ($0.19 loss per basic and diluted
share). Additionally, results from discontinued operations include $88,000 of revenue related to a favorable
settlement of one hospital cost report and the elimination of a $75,000 reserve for another cost report, both
pertaining to our hospital business segment that was discontinued in Fiscal 1999. Operating revenues increased by
16.2%, or $4.5 million, to approximately $32.1 million for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2003 compared to $27.6
million for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2002. This increase is primarily attributable to membership growth from
existing business, one new contract implemented during the fourth quarter of Fiscal 2002, and new Indiana business
that was implemented during January 2003. These increases were offset by the loss of business from two major
customers during Fiscal 2003.

Healthcare operating expenses increased by approximately $4.6 million, or 18.6%, for the fiscal year ended
May 31, 2003 as compared to the fiscal year ended May 31, 2002. This increase is directly attributable to revenue
growth as described above. Healthcare operating expense as a percentage of operating revenue increased by 1.9%
from 89.1% for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2002 to 91.0% for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2003. This increase
is primarily attributable to a change in revenue mix resulting in increased Medicaid membership during Fiscal 2003
compared to Fiscal 2002.

General and administrative expenses decreased by $85,000, or 2.4%, for the fiscal year ended May 31,
2003 as compared to the fiscal year ended May 31, 2002. This decrease is primarily attributable to net reductions in
outside professional service fees offset by staffing additions necessary to support new revenue. General and
administrative expense as a percentage of operating revenue decreased from 12.8% for the fiscal year ended May 31,
2002 to 10.8% for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2003.

Other operating expenses decreased by $15,000 for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2003 compared to the
fiscal year ended May 31, 2002. This decrease is attributable to a decrease in depreciation expense offset by an
increase in bad debt expense in Fiscal 2003 as compared to Fiscal 2002. The increase in bad debt expense is
primarily due to a $66,000 bad debt recovery in Fiscal 2002.
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SEASONALITY OF BUSINESS

Historically and during Fiscal 2004, we have experienced consistently low utilizadon during our first fiscal
quarter, which comprises the months of June, July, and August, and increased utilization during our fourth fiscal
quarter, which comprises the months of March, April and May. Such variations in utilization impact our costs of
care during these months, generally having a positive impact on our gross margins and operating profits during the
first fiscal quarter and a negative impact on our gross margins and operating profits during the fourth qQuarter.

L1QUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

During the fiscal year ended May 31, 2004, net cash used in continuing and:discontinued operations
amounted to $1,168,000 and $88,000, respectively. The Company had $946,000 of net cash provided from financing
activities, primarily through the sale of an aggregate of 700,000 shares of common stock in a private transaction
completed in December 2003. The December 2003 private transaction reduced our working capital deficiency and
stockholders’ deficit each by approximately $971,000. Uses of cash during the fiscal year ended May 31, 2004
include $190,000 related to the ongoing implementation of our new, customized management information systemn.
Our capital needs during Fiscal 2005 will require additional installments toward the $180,000 that remains to be
paid in connection with this system, which has expected total costs of approximately $370,000. Once implemented,
this system will enable us to meet HIPAA requirements, streamline our entire clinical and claims functions, and
offer service improvements to our participating providers. As of May 31, 2004, the Company had a working capital
deficiency of $4.1 million and a stockholders’ deficit of $4.7 million. We are continuing to pursue sources of
financing on terms that would suppert our future capital needs and provide available funds for working capital
during Fiscal 2005. We cannot state with any degree of certainty whether any required additional equity or debt
financing will be available to us during Fiscal 2005 and, if available, that the source of financing would be available
on terms and conditions acceptable to us. These conditions raise substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, which is dependent upon our ability to continue to generate sufficient cash flow to meet
our obligations on a timely basis, obtaining additional financing as may be required and, ultimately, sustaining an
operating profit.

Our unpaid claims liability is estimated using an actuarial paid completion factor methodology and other
statistical analyses. These estimates are subject to the effects of trends in utilization and other factors. Any
significant increase in member utilization that falls outside of our estimations would increase healthcare operating
expenses and may impact our ability to achieve profitability and positive cash flow. Although considerable
variability is inherent in such estimates, we believe that the unpaid claims liability is adequate. However, actual
results could differ from the $3.6 million claims payable amount reported as of May 31, 2004.

The State of Connecticut recently enacted legislation requiring risk-bearing entities, such as CompCare, to
be licensed as a Preferred Provider Network (“PPN’"). We have one contract in Connecticut, which will require us
to obtain a PPN License prior to December 31, 2004 in order to renew that contract in its current form. This
contract represented approximately 13.7% of our operating revenue for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2004 (see
Note 4 “Major Contracts/Customers” to the audited, consolidated financial statements). We are currently in
conversations with the State of Connecticut to determine whether we meet the financial requirements to obtain a
PPN license. While we believe, based on these conversations, that we will be able to obtain a PPN License, we
cannot be certain at this time.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS Payments Due by Period

Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal

Fiscal 2006 and 2008and 2010 and

Total 2005 2007 2009 thereafter

(Amounts in thousands)

Long-term Debt Obligations (a)....cccocvvrvieieiiirucnnnn. $2,244 - - -- 2,244
Capital Lease Obligations and related interest.......... 142 56 81 5 --
Operating Lease Obligations ....cueemervrvvrieinerineninnns 934 509 422 3 -
Purchase Obligations ....o.ccereeervieeeerinieieene e 180 180 -- -- --
Other Long-Term Liabilities (B) ..ovveeevviiniiiinninnnna _224 168 _56 - -
TOLL it e b $3.724 813 359 8 2.244

(a) Excludes 7 2% in interest payable semi-annually in April and October (see Note 11 — “Long-term Debt” to the audited, consolidated
financial statements).

(b) Represents principal and interest due the Company’'s Medicare intermediary for its Aurora, Colorado facility (see Note 9 —
“Discontinued Operations” to the audited, consolidated financial statements).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

Our discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations is based upon the
Company’s consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. The preparation of these consolidated financial statements
requires us to make significant estimates and judgments to develop the amounts reflected and disclosed in the
consolidated financial statements, most notably our estimate for claims incurred by not yet reported (“IBNR”). On
an on-going basis, we evaluate the appropriateness of our estimates and we maintain a thorough process to review
the application of our accounting policies. We base our estimates on historical experience and on various other
assumptions that we believe to be reascnable under the circumstances. Actual results may differ from these
estimates under different assumptions or conditions.

We believe our accounting policies specific to our accrued claims payable (IBNR) and revenue recognition
involve our most significant judgments and estimates that are material to our consolidated financial statements (see
Note 2 — “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies” to the audited, consolidated financial statements).

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT FOR THE PURPOSES OF THE “SAFE HARBOR” PROVISIONS OF THE
PRIVATE SECURITIES LITIGATION REFORM ACT OF 1995: Certain information included in this annual
report on Form 10-K and in other Company reports, SEC filings, statements, and presentations is forward looking
within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, including, but not limited to, statements
concerning the Company’s anticipated operating results, financial resources, increases in revenues, increased
profitability, interest expense, growth and expansion, and the ability to obtain new behavioral healthcare contracts.
Such forward-looking information involves important risks and uncertainties that could significantly affect actual
results and cause them to differ materially from expectations expressed herein and in other Company reports, SEC
filings, statements, and presentations. These risks and uncertainties include local, regional, and national economic
and political conditions, the effect of governmental regulation, the competitive environment in which the Company
operates, and other risks detailed from time to time in the Company’s SEC reports.

RISK FACTORS

IMPORTANT FACTORS RELATED TO FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS

This Annuval Report on Form 10-K contains certain forward-looking statements that are based on our current
expectations and plans. Although we believe our expectations and plans are reasonable, we can provide no
assurance that they will be achieved. Our forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future performance and
are significantly affected by the material risk factors set forth below.

We may not be able to accurately predict utilization of our full-risk contracts resulting in contracts priced at
levels insufficient to ensure profitability.

Managed care operations are at risk for costs incurred to supply agreed upon levels of service. Failure to anticipate
or control costs could have material, adverse effects on the Company. Providing services on a full-risk capitation
basis expcses CompCare to the additional risk that contracts negotiated and entered into may ultimately be
determined to be unprofitable if utilization levels require us to deliver and provide services at capitation rates which
do not account for or factor in such utilization levels.

Our existing and potential managed care clients operate in a highly competitive environment and may be
subject to a higher rate of merger, acquisition and regulation than in other industries.

We typically contract with small to medium sized HMO’s which may be adversely affected by the continuing efforts
of governimental and third party payers to contain or reduce the costs of healthcare through various means. Our
clients may also determine to manage the behavioral healthcare benefits “in house” and, as a result, discontinue
contracting with the Company. Additionally, our clients may be acquired by larger HMO’s, in which case there can
be no assurance that the acquiring company would renew our contract.

Many managed care companies, including nine of our existing clients, provide services to groups covered by
Medicaid and/or CHIP programs. Recent state budgetary cutbacks to such programs have reduced
reimbursement rates and could ultimately affect companies such as CompCare.

As of May 31, 2004, we managed approximately 780,000 lives in connection with behavioral and substance abuse
services covered through CHIP and Medicaid programs in Texas and Medicaid in Connecticut, Florida, and
Michigan. Any changes in CHIP or Medicaid reimbursement could ultimately affect the Company through contract
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bidding and cost structures with the health plans first impacted by such changes. Benefits available to Texas CHIP
recipients were significantly reduced for the five month period September 1, 2003 to January 31, 2004 as a result of
legislative bills passed by the Texas State legislature.  Although subsequent legislation restored the majority of
benefits available to CHIP recipients effective February 1, 2004, the temporary reduction in revenues had a negative
impact on the Company’s results of operations for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2004. Such changes, if
implemented in the future, could have a material, adverse impact on our operations. Additionally, we cannot predict
which states in which we operate may pass legislation that would reduce our revenue through changes in the
reimbursement rates or in the number of eligible participants. In either case, we may be unable to reduce our costs
to a level that would allow us to maintain current gross margins specific to our Medicaid and CHIP programs.

Because providers are responsible for claims submission, the timing of which is uncertain, we must estimate
the amount of claims incurred but not reported.

Our costs of care include estimated amounts for IBNR. The IBNR is estimated using an actuarial paid completion
factor methodology and other statistical analyses that we continually review and adjust, if necessary, to reflect any
change in the estimated liability. These estimates are subject to the effects of trends in utilization and other factors.
Although considerable variability is inherent in such estimates, we believe that our unpaid claims liability is
adequate. However, actual results may differ materially from the estimated amounts reported.

A failure of our information systems would significantly impair our ability to serve our customers and
manage our business.

An effective and secure information system, available at all times, is vital to our health plans and their members.
We depend on our computer systems for significant service and management functions, such as providing
membership verification, monitoring utilization, processing provider claims, and providing regulatory data and other
client and managerial reports. Any loss of availability of our current information system, or implementation failure
related to our new information system currently being developed, may cause a disruption in operations and impact
our performance.

We are subject to intense competition that may prevent us from gaining new customers or pricing our
contracts at levels to achieve sufficient gross margins to ensure profitability.

The Company is continually and aggressively pursuing new business. However, the smaller size and financial
condition of our company has proved a deterrent to some prospective customers. Additionally, we will likely have
difficulty in matching the financial resources expended on marketing characteristic of our competitors. As a result,
we may not be able to realize our forecasted short and long-term growth plans.

A significant portion of our current revenue is derived from five health plans. The loss of any one of these
customers could have a material, adverse effect on our working capital and future results of operations.

We currently have contracts with five health plans to provide behavioral healthcare services under commercial,
Medicaid, and CHIP plans. These combined contracts represent approximately 47.9% and 34.3% of our operating
revenue for the fiscal years ended May 31, 2004 and May 31, 2003, respectively. The terms of each contract are
generally for one-year periods and are automatically renewable for additional one-year periods unless terminated by
either party. The loss of one or more of these clients, without replacement by new business, could negatively affect
the financial condition of the Company.

Recent operating losses create uncertainty regarding future viability.

For each of the fiscal years ending May 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, we had operating losses of approximately
$80,000, $771,000 and $774,000, respectively. The report of the Company's independent auditors with respect to
their audit of the Company's consolidated financial statements for the years ended May 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002
contains an explanatory paragraph relating to the preparation of the Company's consolidated financial statements on
a "going concern” basis and states that the Company’s working capital deficiency, stockholder’s deficit, and
continued losses from operations raise substantial doubt about its ability to continue as a going concern. At May 31,
2004, the Company’s total current liabilities exceeded its total current assets by approximately $4.1 million and it
had an accumulated deficit of approximately $57.7 million, with a total stockholders deficit of approximately $4.7
million. There is no certainty that we will be successful in implementing any of the plans of management to restore
us to profitability, to achieve and maintain positive cash flow on an ongoing basis, or otherwise to ensure that we
will be able to continue as a going concern,
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The industry is subject to extensive state and federal regulations, as well as diverse licensure requirements
varying by state. Changes in regulations could affect the profitability of our contracts or our ability to retain
clients or gain new customers.

CompCare holds licenses or certificates to perform utilization review and TPA services in certain states. There can
be no assurance that additional utilization review or TPA licenses will not be required or, if required, that CompCare
will qualify to obtain such licenses. In many states, entities that assume risk under contract with licensed insurance
companies or health plans have not been considered by state regulators to be conducting an insurance or HMO
business. As a result, we have not sought licensure as either an insurer or HMO in any state. If the regulatory
positions of these states were to change, our business could be materially affected until such time as we are able to
meet the regulatory requirements. Additionally, some states may determine to contract directly with companies such
as ours for managed behavioral healthcare services in which case they may also require us to maintain financial
reserves or net worth requirements that we may not be able to meet. Currently, we cannot quantify the potential
effects of additional regulation of the managed care industry, but such costs will have an adverse effect on future
operations to the extent that they are not able to be recouped in future managed care contracts.

CompCare is subject to the requirements of HIPAA. The purpose of the HIPAA is to improve the efficiency and
effectiveness of the healthcare system through standardization of the electronic data interchange of certain
administrative and financial transactions and, to protect the security and privacy of protected health information.
While we expect to meet all compliance rules and timetables with respect to the HIPAA regulations, failure to do so
may result in penalties and have a material adverse effect on the Company’s ability to retain its customers or to gain
new business.

In order to remain competitive and attract new customers, we wili require additional working capital. We
may not be able to acquire the necessary funding.

We believe that our ability to increase business is dependent on our ability to have available working capital and,
therefore, we require additional funding. In December 2003, we raised approximately $1.0 million through a private
placement transaction of an aggregate of 700,000 shares of our common stock thereby reducing our working capital
deficiency and stockholders’ deficit each by approximately $1.0 million as a result of this transaction. The shares
issued in connection with this private placement transaction have not been registered and may be resold pursuant to
Rule 144 under the general rules and regulations of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, assuming that all of the
conditions and provisions of the rule have been satisfied. The earliest date that these shares will become eligible for
resale without a registration statement is December 8, 2004.

We are continuing to pursue additional sources of financing on terms that would support our capital needs and
provide available funds for working capital in Fiscal 2005. We cannot state with any degree of certainty whether any
required additional equity or debt financing will be available to us during Fiscal 2005 and, if available, that the
source of financing would be available on terms and conditions acceptable to us.

We have noted an annual seasonality in the usage of our provider network. Our financial results may suffer
to the extent we cannot adequately manage periods of increased utilization.

Historically and during Fiscal 2004, we have experienced consistently low utilization during our first fiscal quarter,
which comprises the months of June, July, and August, and increased utilization during our fourth fiscal quarter,
which comprises the months of March, April and May. Such variations in utilization impact our costs of care during
these months, generally having a positive impact on our gross margins and operating profits during the first fiscal
quarter and a negative impact on our gross margins and operating profits during the fourth quarter.

Assumptions relating to the foregoing involve judgments that are difficult to predict accurately and are subject to
many factors that can materially affect results. Budgeting and other management decisions are subjective in many
respects and thus susceptible to interpretations and periodic revisions based on actual experience and business
developments, the impact of which may cause us to alter our budgets which may in turn affect the Company’s
results. In light of the factors that can materially affect the forward-looking information included herein, the
inclusion of such information should not be regarded as a representation by the Company or any other person that
our objectives or plans will be achieved.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

While we currently have market risk sensitive instruments, we have no significant exposure to changing
interest rates as the interest rate on our long-term debt is fixed. Additionally, we do not use derivative financial
instruments for investment or trading purposes and our investments are generally limited to cash deposits.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and Stockholders
Comprehensive Care Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Comprehensive Care Corporation and
subsidiaries as of May 31, 2004, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ deficit and cash
flows for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2004. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the
Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements
based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining,
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall consolidated financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of Comprehensive Care Corporation and subsidiaries as of May 31,
2004, and the consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2004, in
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

As discussed in Note 3, the Company’s working capital deficiency, stockholders’ deficit, and continued
losses from operations raise substantial doubt about its ability to continue as a going concern. Management’s plans

as to these matters are also described in Note 3. The accompanying consolidated financial statements do not include
any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty.

/s/ Kirkland, Russ, Murphy & Tapp P.A.

Clearwater, Florida
July 30, 2004
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and Stockholders
Comprehensive Care Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Comprehensive Care Corporation and
subsidiaries as of May 31, 2003, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ deficit and cash
flows for the years ended May 31, 2003 and 2002. These financial statements are the responsibility of the
Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our

audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of Comprehensive Care Corporation and subsidiaries as of May 31,
2003, and the consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for the years ended May 31, 2003 and
2002, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

As discussed in Note 3, the Company’s working capital deficiency, stockholders’ deficit, and continued
losses from operations raise substantial doubt about its ability to continue as a going concern. Management’s plans
as to these matters are also described in Note 3. The accompanying consolidated financial statements do not include
any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty.

As discussed in Note 2, effective June 1, 2001, the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 142 and changed its method of accounting for goodwill.

/s/ Eisner LLP

New York, New York
July 25,2003
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

May 31,
2004 2003
(Amounts in Thousands)
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash eqUIVAIENTS .......ccooiviireiericccreece e e $ 3,209 3,590
Accounts receivable, less allowance for doubtful accounts of $10 and
$27, FESPECUVELY .. oriivriieee e s 191 75
Accounts receivable — managed care reinsurance contract ..................... ) 553 354
Other CUITENT ASSELS ...vvvevieriieriee et v terree e eiteaeereeeeste e evesrsevbesreeerseansenes _524 _605
Total CUITEIE @SSELS 1.evicveieiiiieeriie e et eer st sre et aeeaar e e e et s reve e eran s 4,477 4,624
Property and equipment, NEt............cceeveiioriieieieeine sttt 390 230
NOE TECEIVADIE ...eiivi ittt st a e vae e s sba e sbaesae e s - 155
GoOAWINL, NEL ..o e e e e 991 991
RESITICEA CASN....viiiiieiieeieec et s e e eb e et 325 328
O ASSBES .. i eeiiiiieiereeaiiinarat e acareeesss e e e bt aasaassasaaansesesssesssneeasnsaesassesassansn _ 42 __ 51
TOLAL BSSEES 1..vvivieeiceerceciree ettt et ettt ettt naes § 6225 6.379

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ DEFICIT
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued Habilities.........cccooocoereieninnceinnecns $ 1,720 1,836
Accrued claims payable........ccoooovviviniiiioi 3,647 4,103
Accrued reinsurance claims payable .......ccocovevvininiinnc e 3,183 3,117
Income taxes PAYADIE ....cc.oocveiirireii e 25 __15
Total current Habilities.........covvroveviiieiiiiceecee e e rvaeera e 8.575 9.071

Long-term liabilities:

Long-term debl... ... 2,244 2,244
Other HabilIties ....oovvieiieiecitee st et 131 54
Total long-term Habilifies .........cocoveiriiirreiirrcrnce e 2,375 2.298
Total HAbITIIES ..cveveeircieeeeen et ettt s 10,950 11,369

Stockholders’ deficit:

Preferred stock, $50.00 par value; authorized 18,740 shares; none issued -- --
Comimon stock, $0.01 par value; authorized 12,500,000 shares; issued
and outstanding 4,673,048 and 3,936,549, respectively ........cocccneenne 47 39

Additional paid-In-capital..........cccceiriimiiiiniicrin e 52,950 51,928

Deferred COMPENSAtiON. ... ..c..eoieeeriiereierire e ete st ee et enees e (4) (16)

Accumulated deficit ... (87.718) (56.941)
Total stockholders’ defICit......c..ocvicviciirireiniieerieieete e e ene e ere e (4,725 (4.990)
Total liabilities and stockholders’ deficit........c.oovvveeriiirivncin e § 6225 6,379
See accompanying reports of independent registered public accounting firms and notes to the consolidated financial

statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Year Ended May 31,
2004 2003 2002
(Amounts in thousands, except per share data)
Operating Revenues .........c.cccccoviiiiniiiiiiinieccse e $27,583 32,104 27,625
Costs and Expenses:
Healthcare Operating EXPENSES .........covvevrierierrrisiriririesessisesniesessenns 24,178 29,201 24,625
General and administrative EXPenses.........coovvvrrnricrerirerverisesereseneons 3,385 3,459 3,544
(Recovery of) provision for doubtful accounts........cccooorvcverirnnnnne N 20 (112)
Depreciation and amortization ...........cccoevivercnearrne e seneeneas 107 195 342
27.663 32.875 28.399
Operating loss before items shown below.................ooii (80) (771) (774)
Other income (expense):
Net gain on IRS settlement........cccoooecvieinnicceiic - 7,717 -
Loss in connection with collection of note receivable (20) - -
Gain on sale 0F @SSELS ..occuivviieeiiriciit e e e -- 4 -
Loss on disposal 0f @SSEtS......cciriiireriiccrrrreees e - 6)] --
Other non-operating INCOME, NEL.......oveiviviiieerire e srcenre s erneeneenns 1 34 40
[NLETESE IMCOMIE «.viviiiieriiir ettt sbe et ee 26 47 83
INTETESE EXPEIISE ...vveireiiieieiineerie ettt sttt (215) (181) (178)
(Loss) income from continuing operations before income taxes...... (288) 6,845 (824)
INCOME 1aX EXPEIISE .o.vvivrierer et 102 __20 1
(Loss) income from continuing operations ..............c..cccoeeeinnnennn. (390) 6,825 (825)
(Loss) income from discontinued operations.................cccoovevveennnne (387) 633 -
(Loss) income before cumulative effect of change in accounting
PrINCIPIE.....oeoi e 777 7,458 (825)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle.............. - - _355
Net (108S) ICOME .....c.ocovei it nenreeaees $ @11 7458 (779
(Loss) income per common share - basic:
(Loss) income from continuing Operations ..........cc.ocvveeeiverrerirareereeniencenees $(0.09) 1.75 0.21)
(Loss) income from discontinued Operations..............ccevevenreoveecereecenennens (0.09) 0.16 --
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle .......cccooveviivecnannn, - — 0.01
Net (I0SS) INCOME ...ouereriiiicireei ettt et et $(0.18) 191 (0.20)
(Loss) income per common share - diluted:
{Loss) income from continuing Operations.........c.ecevveeeeereccresreressiecceenns $(0.09) 1.57 021)
(Loss) income from discontinued Operations.............ccevereiceeinerencenenns (0.09) 0.15 -
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle ..........ccocovvnecinnenn - - 0.01
NEt (10SS) INCOME ...ttt seeceere et sessr s ase s sees $(0.18) L72 0.20
Weighted average common shares outstanding:
BaSIC vt s 4234 3,905 3.860
DHIULEA Lottt bbb 4.284 4,343 3,860

See accompanying reports of independent registered public accounting firms and notes to the consolidated financial
statements.
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COMPREHENSIVE CARE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Year Ended May 31,
2004 2003 2002
(Amounts in thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities:

(Loss) income from continuing Operations ..........ccccuoveveeeveirveeievrerseneeneeeseens $ (390) 6,825 (770)
Adjustments to reconcile (loss) income from continuing operations to net

cash used in operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization.........c.cveeernererienceiericree e erern st sree e s 107 195 342
Provision for doubtful aCCOUNLS........c.cooiiiiccciiniciec e -- 20 --
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle ...........ccceoriinecennne -- -- (55)
Net gain from IRS settlement .........o.occeiiiiiiiniiiini e -- (7,717 --
Loss in connection with prepavment of note receivable..............ccocveivnnine 20 -- --
Gain 0N SAlE OF @SSEIS .ovvviveiieiiie ettt e e eeeae ettt sens -- (€3] --
Loss on disposal 0f @SSELS......ceviiiriiiiieiiiriee e -- 5 --
Compensation expense — StOCK 1SSUEd .......ceeriririrriirc e e 33 20 --
Compensation expense — stock options and warrants issued............cccoveeee. 31 15 --
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable.... ..o (116) 229 98
Accounts receivable — managed care reinsurance cONtract.........coceeerreeeenens (199) 221 208
Other receivable...... ..o -- 525 --
Other current assets, restricted funds, and other non-current assets ............. ) 286 284
Unbenefitted tax refunds received.........ccovveeviiiiiininin e -~ (2,258) --
Accounts payable and accrued labilities..........cooveninciiieniiiiiice (270) (132) (397)
Accrued claims payable.........oooiiiioiir s (456) (532) 1,564
Accrued reinsurance claims payable .........ccccovrieniiiinnice 66 1,098 1,236
Income taxes payable ... 10 (D (15)
Other HabIIILIES ...ovievieieeee ettt ettt ettt esv e erseseas — - _ (8
Net cash (used in) provided by continuing operations ............................ (1,168) (1,205) 2,487
Net cash used in discontinued operations...............cc.cooooeeiinnercncccnnnns _ (88) (480) -
Net cash (used in) provided by continuing and discontinued
OPETALIONS ...ttt ettt e er e e s (1,256) (1,685) 2,487
Cash flows from investing activities:
Net proceeds from sale of property and equipment.........c...cccocvveirrerennenn, -- 3 --
Payment received on note for sale of property and equipment..................... 139 4 4
Additions to property and eqUIPmMENt .........cccoeririiiiinineiieeccere e 210) an 43)
Net cash used in investing aCtVItIEs ...............cccooeeeevireriecreieeeice e (7D (70) 39
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from the issuance of common Stock......cocoieviiiiiiiiiieiciinninns 979 18 3
Repayment 0f debt..... .o 33) B CE)) _ @
Net cash provided by financing activities ...............c.cccooriniceniin e, _946 35 1
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents ..........c.c.cceccceneenirnenncne (381) (1,750) 2,449
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year.............cccooevnevininninncicinas 3,590 5.340 2.891
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year ..., $ 3,209 3.590 3,340

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:
Cash paid during the year for

TIETESE ...ttt et sttt e § 205 182 179

INCOMIE TAXES ...ecoeieirctiiic ettt ettt e ettt eb e st en e § 92 22 _l6
Noncash financing and investing activities

Property acquired under capital 1€ases..........cccocovrvecenininincn § _76 _49 30

See accompanying reports of independent registered public accounting firms and notes to the consolidated financial
statements.
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COMPREHENSIVE CARE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTE 1 -- DESCRIPTION OF THE COMPANY’S BUSINESS

Comprehensive Care Corporation (the “Company” or “CompCare”) is a Delaware Corporation organized in 1969,
Unless the context otherwise requires, all references to the “Company” include Comprehensive Behavioral Care, Inc.
("CBC”) and subsidiary corporations. The Company, primarily through its wholly owned subsidiary, CBC, provides
managed care services in the behavioral health and psychiatric fields, which is its only operating segment. The Company
manages the delivery of a continuum of psychiatric and substance abuse services to commercial, Medicare, and Medicaid
members on behalf of employers, health plans, government organizations, third-party claims administrators, and
commercial and other group purchasers of behavioral healthcare services. The managed care operations include
administrative service agreements, fee-for-service agreements, and capitation contracts. The customer base for its services
includes both corporate and governmental entities. The Company’s services are provided primarily by unrelated vendors
on a subcontract or subcapitated basis.

NOTE 2 -- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Comprehensive Care Corporation and its wholly
owned subsidiaries. Significant inter-company accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts
reported in the consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

RECLASSIFICATIONS

Reclassifications of prior year amounts related to discontinued hospital operations have been made to conform to
the current year’s presentation (see Note 9).

REVENUE RECOGNITION

The Company’s managed care activities are performed under the terms of agreements with health maintenance
organizations (“HMOs”), preferred provider organizations, and other health plans or payers to provide contracted
behavioral healthcare services to subscribing participants. Revenue under a substantial portion of these agreements is
earned monthly based on the number of qualified participants regardless of services actually provided (generally referred to
as capitation arrangements). The information regarding qualified participants is supplied by the Company’s clients and the
Company relies extensively on the accuracy of the client remittance and other reported information to determine the amount
of revenue to be recognized. Such agreements accounted for 85.5%, or $23.6 million, of revenue for the fiscal year ended
May 31, 2004, 87.4%, or $28.2 million, of revenue for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2003, and 84.7%, or $23.4 million, of
revenue for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2002. The remaining balance of the Company’s revenues is earned on a fee-for-
service basis and is recognized as services are rendered.

HEALTHCARE EXPENSE RECOGNITION

The Company attempts to control its costs and risk by entering into contractual relationships with healthcare
providers including hospitals, physician groups and other managed care organizations either on a sub-capitated, a
discounted fee-for-services, or a per-case basis. The Company’s capitation contracts typically exclude risk for chronic care
patients. The cost of healthcare services is recognized in the period that the Company is obligated to provide such services.
Certain contracted healthcare providers assume the financial risk for participant care rendered by them and they are
compensated on a sub-capitated basis.

In cases where the Company retains the financial responsibility for authorizations, hospital utilization, and the cost

of other behavioral healthcare services, the Company establishes an accrual for estimated claims payable (see “Accrued
Claims Payable” below).
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COMPREHENSIVE CARE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

PREMIUM DEFICIENCIES

Estimated future healthcare costs and expenses in excess of estimated future premiums are recorded as a loss when
determinable. No such deficiencies existed at May 31, 2004 or May 31, 2003.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

At May 31, 2004, cash and cash equivalents consist entirely of funds on deposit in savings and checking accounts
at major financial institutions. At May 31, 2003, cash in excess of daily requirements was invested in short-term
investments with original maturities of 90 days or less, with such investments aggregating $2.4 million and included in cash
equivalents in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet.

RESTRICTED CASH

At May 31, 2004 and 2003, non-current restricted accounts include $0.3 million of cash held in trust in connection
with the Company’s Directors and Officers liability insurance policy. During Fiscal 2003, the Company surrendered one
license held by an inactive Michigan subsidiary and, as a result, approximately $100,000 of previously restricted cash was
released to the Company.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation expense is computed using the straight-line method over
the estimated useful lives ranging from 3 to 12 years. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the shorter of the lease
term or the asset’s useful life.

GOODWILL

Goodwill includes costs in excess of fair value of the net assets acquired in purchase transactions, less
amortization.

In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Statements of Financial Accounting
Standards (“SFAS”) No. 141, “Business Combinations” and No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” which
establishes new guidance for the treatment of goodwill and other intangible assets. Pursuant to SFAS 142, which was
adopted by the Company effective June 1, 2001, goodwill is not amortized but is periodically evaluated for impairment to
carrying amount, with decreases in carrying amount recognized immediately. The Company reviews goodwill for
impairment annually, or more frequently if changes in circumstances or the occurrence of events suggest an impairment
exists. The test for impairment of goodwill requires the Company to make estimates about fair value, which are based on
projected future cash flows. In accordance with SFAS 142, the Company had performed an impairment test within six
months of the adoption date and determined that no impairment of goodwill had occurred as of such date. In addition, the
Company performed an annual impairment test as of May 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 and determined that no impairment of
goodwill had occurred as of such dates. SFAS 141 requires that the purchase method of accounting be used for all business
combinations initiated after June 30, 2001. Additionally, SFAS 141, requires the elimination of any unamortized deferred
credits related to an excess of fair value of acquired assets over cost from a business combination for which the acquisition
date was before July 1, 2001 immediately upon adoption of SFAS 142. As of June 1, 2001, the Company had an
unamortized deferred credit of $55,000 that related to an acquisition in 1996. As a result, the Company recognized
$55,000 as the cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle during the quarter ended August 31, 2001.

EXTINGUISHMENT OF DEBT

In April 2002, the FASB issued Statement No. 145, “Rescission of FASB Statements No. 4, 44, and 64,
Amendment of FASB Statement No. 13, and Technical Corrections.” This Statement eliminates the automatic
classification of gain or loss on extinguishment of debt as an extraordinary item and requires that such gain or loss be
evaluated for extraordinary classification under the criteria of Accounting Principles Board No. 30, “Reporting Results of
Operations.” The Company adopted the provisions of SFAS 145 effective for its fiscal year ended May 31, 2003 and has
reflected gains on settlement of debt as other income instead of as extraordinary items.
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COMPREHENSIVE CARE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
ACCRUED CLAIMS PAYABLE

The accrued claims payable liability represents the estimated ultimate net amounts owed for all behavioral
healthcare services provided through the respective balance sheet dates, including estimated amounts for claims incurred
but not yet reported (“IBNR”) to the Company. The unpaid claims liability is estimated using an actuarial paid completion
factor methodology and other statistical analyses and is continually reviewed and adjusted, if necessary, to reflect any
change in the estimated liability. These estimates are subject to the ‘effects of trends in utilization and other factors.
However, actual claims incurred could differ from the estimated claims payable amount reported as of May 31, 2004 and
2003. Although considerable variability is inherent in such estimates, management believes that the unpaid claims liability
is adequate.

INCOME TAXES

The Company has adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 109, “Accounting for
Income Taxes.” Under the asset and liability method of SFAS No. 109, deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for
the future tax consequences attributable to net operating loss carryforwards and to differences between the financial
statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary
differences are expected to be recovered or settled. Under SFAS No. 109, the effect of a change in tax rates on deferred tax
assets or liabilities is recognized in the consolidated statements of operations in the period that included the enactment. A
valuation allowance is established for deferred tax assets unless their realization is considered more likely than not.

STOCK OPTIONS

The Company issues stock options to its employees and non-employee directors (“optionees™) allowing optionees
to purchase the Company’s common stock pursuant to shareholder approved stock option plans.  As permitted by
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 148, “ Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation-Transitional
Disclosure,” the Company has elected to follow Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock
Issued to Employees” and related interpretations in accounting for its employee stock options (“APB 25”). Under APB 25,
in the event that the exercise price of the Company’s employee stock options is less than the market price of the underlying
stock on the date of grant, compensation expense is recognized. No stock-based employee compensation cost is reflected in
net (loss) income, as all options granted under the Company’s employee stock options plans had an exercise price equal to
the market value of the underlying common stock on the date of grant. The following table illustrates the effect on net (loss)
income and (loss) income per share if the Company had applied the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123 to
stock-based employee compensation.

YEAR ENDED MAY 31,
2004 2003 2002
(in thousands except for per share
information)

Net (loss) income, as rePOrted.........cooveiiiireeinieriere e $ (777 $7,458 $ (770)
Deduct:

Total stock-based employee compensation expense determined

under fair value based method for all awards, net of related tax

BIEECTS oottt ettt ettt b 21 (179) s
Pro forma net (loss) income $ (988) $7.219 585
(Loss) income per common share:

BaSic ~ a5 TEPOTLE ..o.vvvevriiiiee vttt $(0.18) $191 $(0.20)

Basic — Pro fOIma..... oo s $(0.23) $1.86 $(0.20)

Diluted — a8 TEePOTEd......oveeeceeeeeievie et $(0.18) $1.72 $(0.20)

Diluted — Pro fOrMAa. .........cvvcisierissieecseesrs s $023) $ 1.68 $(0.20)

The weighted average fair values of options granted were $1.31, $0.72, and $0.40 in Fiscal 2004, 2003, and 2002,
respectively. For purposes of pro forma disclosures, the estimated fair value of the options is amortized to expense over the
options’ vesting period.
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COMPREHENSIVE CARE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

The fair value of these options was estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes cption-pricing model
with the following assumptions:

YEAR ENDED MAY 31,

2004 2003 2002
Volatility factor of the expected market price of the
Company’s common StOCK........coocviirrercrenrrreineenens 95.0% 95.0% '95.0%
Expected life (in years) of the options..........c.cecvvveeieennnne 3,4,and 5 5 5
Risk-free interest rate ..........cccovviciiiiincniciiiicec e 3.6% 4.0% 4.9%
Dividend yield.......oovveviiiniini e 0% 0% 0%

The fair value of options granted to non-employee consultants is being amortized to expense over the vesting
period of the options.

PER SHARE DATA

In calculating basic (loss) income per share, net (loss) income is divided by the weighted average number of
common shares outstanding for the period. Diluted (loss) income per share reflects the assumed exercise or conversion of
all dilutive securities, such as options, warrants, and convertible debentures. No such exercise or conversion is assumed
where the effect is antidilutive, such as when there is a net loss. The following table sets forth the computation of basic and
diluted (loss) income per share in accordance with Statement No. 128, Earnings Per Share (amounts in thousands, except
per share data):

Fiscal Year Ended May 31,

2004 2003 2002
Numerator:
(Loss) income from continiing Operations ............c.occcevveereocavesrasecrsesvaneanes $ (390) 6,825 (82%)
(Loss) income from discontinued Operations ...........cccccevveeerecorieenreceeiciuennene. (38D 633 -
(Loss) income from continuing operations before cumulative effect
of change in accounting princCiple.........c.ccovovvvevenceirninencercerine e $ @@ 7,458 (825)
Cumutative effect of change in accounting principle ...........cocoveveeineinninenn - - 55
Numerator for diluted (loss) income per share available to Common
StOCKROIAETS ...ttt $ @11 7,458 (Z70)
Denominator:
Weighted average Shares .......c.coccoevmiereecon e 4,284 3,905 3,860
Effect of dilutive securities:
Employee StocK OPtIONS.........ocoiviiiiinirenreiernecrrnee oo asneeen -~ 437 --
WWAITANTS ....ovireiiieeiectee e et st ceer e aaeseeessaeereasbeesse e aesersasaeanseeatnssaeerssenseesnees - 1 -
Denominator for diluted income per share-adjusted weighted
average shares after assumed eXercises . .......cccvveiimineievccneenccnncnneienens 4284 4,343 3.860
(Loss) income per common share - basic:
(Loss) income from continuing Operations.........c.ccoovevereercncenscnneeeennesnene. $(0.09) 1.75 0.21)
(Loss) income from discontinued Operations............coveveevvevveeviernieeserenenas (0.09) 0.16 --
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle ..........cccccccrevvrnnrnnee - — 0.01
NEt (10SS) INCOMIE. .. ueuriecereeerrire ettt st eees sttt res e ee s naas $(0.18) 191 (0.20)
(Loss) income per common share - diluted:
{Loss) income from continuing Operations...........ccocoviverierecesrenenneeseresneeas $(0.09) 1.57 (0.2D)
(Loss) income from discontinued Operations.............cc.ocveveivenrvnnncnecennns (0.09) 0.15 --
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle...........ccocvcieincnnnee. - - 0.01
Net (10SS) INCOME.....cvviieeiciiieeerirteir ettt en $(0.18 L2 (0.20)

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

FASB Statement No. 107, “Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments” requires disclosure of fair
value information about financial instruments for which it is practical to estimate that value.
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COMPREHENSIVE CARE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

For cash and cash equivalents, notes receivable, and restricted cash, the carrying amount approximates fair value.
For long-term debt, the fair value is based on the estimated market price for the Debentures on the last day of the fiscal
year.

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Company’s financial instruments at May 31, 2004 and 2003 are as
follows:
2004 2003
CARRYING FAIR CARRYING  FAIR
AMOUNT VALUE AMOUNT VALUE

(AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS)
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents............ccc.cccoreieiceiiinennn $3,209 3,209 3,590 3,590
Note receivable.......cooviiviiiiiiii e - -- 159 159
Restricted cash.......ccoceiiiiiiii e 325 325 328 328
Liabilities
Long-term debt........ooveviiviveir et $2,244 2,118 2,244 2,328

NOTE 3 -- BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis. During the fiscal
year ended May 31, 2004, net cash used in continuing and discontinued operations amounted to $1,168,000 and $88,000,
respectively. The Company had $946,000 of net cash provided from financing activities, primarily through the sale of an
aggregate of 700,000 shares of common stock in a private placement transaction completed in December 2003.  This
transaction reduced the Company’s working capital deficiency and stockholders’ deficit each by approximately $971,000.
Uses of cash during the fiscal year ended May 31, 2004 include $190,000 for the Company’s ongoing implementation of its
new, customized management information system. The Company’s capital needs during Fiscal 2005 will require additional
installments toward the $180,000 that remains to be paid in connection with this system, which has expected total costs of
approximately $370,000. Once implemented, this system will enable the Company to meet HIPAA requirements,
streamline the Company’s entire clinical and claims functions, and offer service improvements to the Company’s
participating providers.

As of May 31, 2004, the Company had a working capital deficiency of $4.1 million and a stockholders’ deficit of
$4.7 million. The Company is continuing to pursue sources of financing on terms that would support the Company’s capital
needs and provide available funds for working capital during Fiscal 2005. Management cannot state with any degree of
certainty whether any required additional equity or debt financing will be available to the Company during Fiscal 2005 and,
if available, that the source of financing would be available on terms and conditions acceptable to the Company. Further,
the Company has incurred operating losses during each of the years ended May 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002. These conditions
raise substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, which is dependent upon its ability to
continue to generate sufficient cash flow to meet its obligations on a timely basis, obtaining additional financing as may be
required and, ultimately, attaining an operating profit. The accompanying consolidated financial statements do not include
any adjustments that may result from the outcome of this uncertainty.

NOTE 4 -- MAJOR CONTRACTS/CUSTOMERS

(1) Beginning January 1, 2003, the Company contracted with a new HMO client to provide behavioral healthcare services
to contracted Medicaid members in Florida. This business accounted for 16.0%, or $4.4 million, of the Company’s
operating revenues during the fiscal year ended May 31, 2004. During the prior fiscal year, such Medicaid members were
serviced by the Company through its contract with another HMO whose agreements with the Company covered Medicaid,
Medicare, and commercial members and represented a combined 24.1%, or $7.8 million, and 21.4%, or $5.9 million, of the
Company’s operating revenue for the twelve months ended May 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. On December 31, 2002,
the Company received a formal termination notice, effective February 28, 2003, from the prior HMO client with respect to
the Medicare and commercial business. In addition, the acquiring HMQO, whose contract with the Company was scheduled
to renew in January 2004, formally advised the Company on October 30, 2003 that it had determined to “insource
behavioral health” and, therefore, would not renew its contract with the Company. Accordingly, the Company’s contract
with this HMO customer terminated effective December 31, 2003.
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(2) The Company has one contract to provide behavioral healthcare services to Connecticut members under contract with
one HMO. This agreement represented approximately 13.7%, or $3.8 million, 9.0%, or $2.9 million, and 12.7%, or $3.5
million of the Company’s operating revenue for the fiscal years ended May 31, 2004, 2003, and 2002, respectively.
Additionally, this contract provides that the Company, through its contract with this HMO, receives additional funds
directly from a state reinsurance program for the purpose of paying providers. During the fiscal years ended May 31, 2004,
2003, and 2002, the Company filed reinsurance claims totaling approximately $2.1 million, $3.0 million, and $3.8 million,
respectively. Such claims represent cost reimbursements and, as such, are not included in the reported operating revenues
and are accounted for as reductions of healthcare operating expenses. As of May 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively, the
Company has reported $3.2 million and $3.1 million as accrued reinsurance claims payable, with $0.6 and $0.4 million
reported as accounts receivable-managed care reinsurance contracts. In the event that the Company does not collect the
amounts receivable related to reinsurance amounts, the Company could remain liable for the costs of the specific services
provided to members that qualify for such reimbursements. The difference between the reinsurance receivable amount and
the reinsurance payable amount is related to timing differences between the authorization date, the date the money is
received by the Company, and the date the money is paid to the provider. In certain cases, providers have submitted claims
for authorized services having incorrect service codes or otherwise incorrect information that has caused payment to be
denied by the Company. In such cases, there are contractual and statutory provisions that allow the provider to appeal a
denied claim. If no appeal is received by the Company within the prescribed amount of time, the Company may be
required to remit the reinsurance funds back to the appropriate party. For non-reinsurance claims incurred but not reported
under this contract, the Company estimates its claims payable using a similar method as that used for other existing
contracts. This HMO has been a customer since March 2001. The original contract term ended December 31, 2002 and, in
accordance with its terms, has automatically renewed for two consecutive one-year periods, with the current term ending
December 31, 2004.

(3) The Company has contracts with one HMO to provide behavioral healthcare services to contracted commercial,
Medicaid, and Children’s Health Insurance Program (“CHIP”) members in Texas. This business accounted for
approximately 14.5%, or $4.0 million, 11.9%, or $3.9 million, and 12.2%, or $3.4 million of the Company’s operating
revenues during the fiscal years ended May 31, 2004, 2003, and 2002, respectively. The Fiscal 2003 and 2002 amounts
include revenue received from another customer placed under conservatorship by the State of Texas whose Medicaid
members were added to those of the HMO during Fiscal 2003. Benefits available to Texas CHIP recipients were
significantly reduced for the five month period September 1, 2003 to January 31, 2004 as a result of legislative bills passed
by the Texas State legislature. Consequently, CHIP business under this contract accounted for approximately 4.8%, or $1.3
million, of operating revenues for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2004 as compared to 7.3%, or $2.4 million, and 7.2%, or
$2.0 million of operating revenues for the twelve month periods ended May 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Subsequent
legislation has restored the majority of benefits available to CHIP recipients effective February 1, 2004. This HMO has
been a customer of the Company since November 1998. The original contract term was for one year and the contract
provides for automatic one-year renewal terms.

{4) During the prior fiscal year, the Company had three contracts with one HMO to provide behavioral healthcare services
to Florida members. The combined revenue from these contracts accounted for 11.7%, or $3.8 million and 17.0%, or $4.7
million, of the Company’s operating revenues during the fiscal years ended May 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. These
contracts covering Florida members terminated effective January 1, 2003. Additionally, the Company has one major
contract with an affiliate of this HMO (see [tem 2 above).

Although there can be no assurance that the Company will be able to reduce its costs in an amount sufficient to offset the
loss of gross margins associated with the customers listed under (1) and (3) above, the Company has undertaken efforts to
restructure its regional and corporate operations, including the centralization of certain clinical and administrative
functions, generalized staff downsizing, and the elimination of certain expenses that cannot be supported with existing and
remaining revenues, to minimize any effect on future results of operations.

In general, the Company’s contracts with its customers are typically for initial one-year terms, with automatic annual
extensions. Such contracts generally provide for cancellation by either party with 60 to 90 days written notice.
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NOTE 5 -- ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
Accounts Receivable of $201,000 at May 31, 2004 and $102,000 at May 31, 2003 consists of trade receivables resulting

from services rendered under managed care capitation contracts. The following table summarizes changes in the
Company’s allowance for doubtful accounts for the years ended May 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002;

BALANCE ADDITIONS WRITE-OFF
BEGINNING CHARGED TO RECOVERIES OF BALANCE
OF YEAR EXPENSE * ACCOUNTS END OF YEAR
(Amounts in thousands)
Year ended May 31, 2004............... § 27 10 -- 27N 10
Year ended May 31,2003............. $ 8 43 -- 24 27
Year ended May 31, 2002............... $ 11 3 - - 8

*Excludes $17,000 in 2004, $24,000 in 2003, and $109,000 in 2002 of recoveries from accounts previously written off,

Recoveries are reflected on the Company’s consolidated statement of operations as a reduction to the provision for
doubtful accounts.

NOTE 6 - OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Other current assets consist of the following: MAY 31,
2004 2003
(Amounts in thousands)
Accounts receivable — other ... $ 37 138
Prepaid INSUTANCE .......ccoiriiiiieiee et 315 314
Other prepaid fees and XPenses ...........coeeveimecreinerciicnnienneceeeecea 172 153
Total Other CUITENE ASSELS ...vvvrve it $ 524 605

NOTE 7 -- PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment consists of the following:

MAY 31,
2004 2003
(Amounts in thousands)
Furniture and eqUIPIMENT.........ccooooviiviiioiiietieiee ettt st e e asaeeeeseve e seeeranens $ 3,385 3,480
Leasehold improvements .........c..coo i 49 49
Capitalized JRASES .........ocooviireieee e e 130 _ 54
3,564 3,583
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization ............ccooeeveriieiveenienieininc s (3.174) (3.353)
Net property and eqUIPIIENT ........cc.ovrrirrir it ene e $_390 _230

NOTE 8 -- NOTE RECEIVABLE

Note receivable consists of the following:

May 31,
004 2003
(Amounts in Thousands)

[\od

8% promissory note, payable in monthly installments of approximately
$1,400, with a $146,000 principal payment due at maturity on

APIIL 1, 2006 ..o $ - 159
LSS CUITENT MATULILIES 1eevvveeiireeireverriiereasreeerreerieeeiseersreeseeeesieeeaeresenes - @
5= 153

In Fiscal 1999, the Company sold its Aurora, Colorado facility to Jefferson Hills Corporation (“JHC”) in exchange
for cash and a secured promissory note. On August 31, 2000, the Company entered into a prepayment agreement that
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resulted in an immediate cash payment of $500,000 from JHC and a revision of the note maturity date to April of 2006. As
an inducement to make such prepayment, the Company credited JHC with an aggregate of approximately $996,000.

During Fiscal 2004, the Company negotiated an early payment arrangement with JHC that resulted in payoff of the
note, The Company received a cash payment of $137,500 from JHC and recorded a non-operating loss of $20,000 during
Fiscal 2004 in connection with this early payment arrangement.

NOTE 9 —- DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

Results for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2004 include a change in estimate resulting in a $387,000 charge
recorded in August 2003 related to hospital operations disposed of in prior years, which is included under discontinued
operations in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. The charge primarily relates to settlement of the
Company’s Fiscal 1999 Medicare cost report for its Aurora, Colorado facility that was sold by the Company during Fiscal
1999. The settlement requires the Company to repay $400,000 specific to Fiscal 1999, less approximately $106,000 in
Medicare refunds that were due the Company in connection with its Fiscal 1995 and 1996 Medicare cost report settlements
for this same Aurora, Colorado hospital. Further, the Medicare intermediary accepted the Company’s proposed, 24-month,
12.125% installment payment plan to repay the net amount of approximately $300,000, of which $206,000 remains to be
paid as of May 31, 2004. Of the remaining amount, approximately $151,000 is included in accounts payable and accrued
expenses and $55,000 in long-term liabilities in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet at May 31, 2004.

In connection with the above presentation, the Company has reclassified its results of operations for Fiscal 2003 to
reflect items related to discontinued hospital operations, consisting of a $470,000 gain on settlement of a liability (see Note
15(4)) and income of $163,000 relating to hospital cost report settlements.

NOTE 10 -- ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities consist of the following:

May 31,
2004 2003
(Amounts in Thousands)
Accounts payable.....ccovviii $ 166 379
Accrued salaries and WageS ........occcveviereienieiieeeee e 135 151
ACCTUEA VACALION ...coveiicieiieiteei ettt st 141 130
Accrued legal and audit ..o 84 149
Other accrued HabilitIes . ....vvvivieiiirieieeee e 1,194 1,026
Deferred COMPENSAtION......c..coieieriimimicieit et ee - 1
$ 1,720 1,836
NOTE 11 -- LONG-TERM DEBT
Long-term debt consists of the following:
May 31,
2004 2003

(Amounts in Thousands)
7 4% convertible subordinated debentures due April, 2010, interest
payable semi-annually in April and October*...............coeveereenenne. $2,244 2,244

*The debentures are convertible into approximately 9,000 shares of Common Stock at a conversion price of $248.12 per share.
NOTE 12 -- INCOME TAXES

Provision for income taxes consists of the following:
YEAR ENDED MAY 31,
2004 2003 2002

(Amounts in thousands)
Current:

FOAETAL ..ottt ee e et et a e et e v e neeaer e e e e et anne $ -

&
¥
1)
b2
(el (e B |
(80 N
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Reconciliation between the provision for income tax and the amount computed by applying the statutory Federal
income tax rate (34%) to income (loss) before income tax is as follows:

YEAR ENDED MAY 31,

2004 2003 2002
(Amounts in thousands)
Income tax provision (benefit) at the statutory tax rate ..........c.ccceveeviernrinnens $(230) 2,543 (280)
State income tax provision (benefit), net of federal tax effect......................... (26) 296 (33)
Non-taxable gain on IRS settlement ... -- (3,733) --
Non-deductible IEMS....coviiiiiirreecrcrr s eae e 44 54 58
Benefit of net operating loss carryforward not recognized................cc.co.o....... 314 840 255
OthET, NEL ... et ettt eaeen - 20 1
‘ $ 102 20 1
Significant components of the Company’s deferred tax assets are as follows:
MAY 31,
2004 2003

(Amounts in thousands)
Deferred Tax Assets:

Net operating 105s caITyfOrwards..........c.ocvoviivineininioninien e $ 1,332 730
ACCIUEH EXPEIISES ...ttt e et eee e 134 --
Employee benefits and optionsS.........ccocoocevreiiiiiiinirnoricnneieneee e e 55 79
Other,net......cocoevevieeennn, e bttt et ettt en et asrea 90 186
Total Deferred TaxX ASSEIS.......c.ooviieeee e eee e 1,611 995
Valuation ANOWATICE ...ccveiiiiiiiinieiiieie ittt et st eae e 1,611) 995
Net Deferred Tax ASSELS.....coieiriiineeie ittt esr e ere e en e -- -

In Fiscal 2003 the Company settled a tax dispute with the IRS regarding the disallowance of $12.4 million in
previously received tax refunds specific to the Company’s Fiscal 1985 and 1986 income tax returns. In accordance with the
settlement the Company paid the IRS $2.2 million and relinquished rights to Federal net operating loss carryforwards of
approximately $42.0 million resulting from losses incurred in fiscal years ended May 31, 1995 through May 31, 2001, and
a minimum tax credit carryover of approximately $0.7 million.

As a resuit of the resolution of this matter, the Company extinguished the $12.1 million liability, which had been
recorded for the refunds pending resolution of the dispute, and recorded a non-operating gain in the quarter ended February
28, 2003 of approximately $7.7 million net of related expenses, including $2.0 million representing the unrecovered portion
of the $2.5 million of fees previously paid to its tax advisor. The gain represented income per share of $1.97 (diluted
income per share of $1.77). No taxable income resulted from the settlement of the liability.

At May 31, 2004, the Company’s Federal net operating loss carryforwards total approximately $3.5 million
resulting from losses incurred in the fiscal years ended May 31, 2002, 2003, and 2004, which expire in 2022, 2023, and
2024,

The Company may be unable to utilize some or all of its allowable tax deductions or losses, which depends upon
factors including the availability of sufficient taxable income from which to deduct such losses during limited carryover
periods. Further, the Company’s ability to use any net operating losses may be subject to limitation in the event that the
Company issues or agrees to issue substantial amounts of additional equity. The Company monitors the potential for
“change of ownership” and believes that its financing plans as contemplated will not cause a “change of ownership”;
however, no assurances can be made that future events will not act to limit the Company’s tax benefits.

After consideration of all the evidence, both positive and negative, management has determined that a valuation
allowance at May 31, 2004 and 2003, was necessary to fully offset the deferred tax assets based on the likelihood of future
realization.
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NOTE 13 -- EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLAN

The Company offers a 401(k) Plan (the “Plan”), which is a defined contribution plan qualified under Section
401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code, for the benefit of its eligible employees. All full-time and part-time employees who
have attained the age of 21 and have completed one thousand hours of service are eligible to participate in the Plan. Each
participant may contribute from 2% to 50% of his or her compensation to the Plan up to the annual maximum allowed
amount, which was $12,000 during Calendar 2003, subject to limitations on the highly compensated employees to ensure
the Plan is non-discriminatory. Company contributions are discretionary and are determined by the Company’s
management. The Company’s employer matching contributions were approximately $2,300, $9,000, and $9,000 to the
Plan in Fiscal 2004, 2003, and 2002, respectively.

NOTE 14 -- PREFERRED STOCK, COMMON STOCK, AND STOCK OPTION PLANS
Preferred Stock

As of May 31, 2004, there are 18,740 remaining shares authorized and available to issue, and no outstanding
shares of Preferred Stock. The Company is authorized to issue shares of Preferred Stock, $50.00 par value, in one or more
series, each series to have such designation and number of shares as the Board of Directors may fix prior to the issuance of
any shares of such series. Each series may have such preferences and relative participation, optional or special rights with
such qualifications, limitations or restrictions stated in the resolution or resolutions providing for the issuance of such series
as may be adopted from time to time by the Board of Directors prior to the issuance of any such series.

Common Stock

Authorized shares of common stock reserved for possible issuance for convertible debentures and stock options
are as follows at May 31, 2004:

Convertible debENUIES ......ccveiecvri vttt ettt et e e eanesbae e srae s 9,044

Outstanding StOCK OPHIONS. ......c.vvrieieirreti ettt ert e 1,229,390

Possible future issuance under stock option plans...........c.coovvereiciccnicrninens 312,569

TOLAL ..ttt ettt ettt bt ettt r et ebenene i 1,551,003
Stock Option Plans

The Company currently has two active incentive plans, the 1995 Incentive Plan and the 2002 Incentive Plan
(“Plans™), that provide for the granting of stock options, stock appreciation rights, limited stock appreciation rights, and
restricted stock grants to eligible employees and consultants to the Company. Grants issued under the Plans may qualify as
Incentive Stock Options (“ISOs”) under Section 422A of the Internal Revenue Code. Options for 1SOs may be granted for
terms of up to ten years and are generally exercisable in cumulative increments of 50% each six months. Options for Non-
statutory Stock Options (“NSOs”) may be granted for terms of up to 13 years. The exercise price for ISOs must equal or
exceed the fair market value of the shares on the date of grant, and 65% in the case of other options. The Plans also provide
for the full vesting of all outstanding options under certain change of control events. The maximum number of shares
authorized for issuance is 500,000 under the 2002 Incentive Plan and 1,000,000 under the 1995 Incentive Plan. As of May
31, 2004, there were 208,500 shares available for option grants and there were 280,500 options outstanding, of which
193,000 options were exercisable, under the 2002 Incentive Plan. Additionally, as of May 31, 2004, there were 2,400
shares available for option grants and there were 859,725 options outstanding, of which 859,725 options were exercisable,
under the 1995 Incentive Plan.

The Company also has a non-qualified stock option plan for its outside directors (the “Directors’ Plan”). Each non-
qualified stock option is exercisable at a price equal to our common stock’s fair market value as of the date of grant. Initial
grants vest annually in 25% increments beginning on the first anniversary of the date of grant, provided the individual is
still a director on those dates. Annual grants will become 100% vested as of the first annual meeting of our stockholders
following the date of grant, provided the individual is still a director as of that date. Such annual grants include options
granted to non-employee directors for service on the various committees of the Board of Directors. An optionee who
ceases to be a director shall forfeit that portion of the option attributable to such vesting dates on or after the date he or she
ceases to be a director. The maximum number of shares authorized for issuance under the Directors’ Plan is 250,000. As of
May 31, 2004, there were 96,669 shares available for option grants and there were 89,165 options outstanding, of which
42,499 options were exercisable, under the Directors’ Plan.
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A summary of the Company’s stock option activity and related information for the years ended May 31 is as follows:

Weighted
Average
Shares Exercise Price
Outstanding as of May 31,2001 ... 888,525 $0.84
GIANEEA ..o 38,000 0.45
EXEICISEA ... iioeiceee ettt (11,250) 0.27
FOrfeited .......ooviiiiicicc e (12.100) 0.66
Outstanding as of May 31, 2002 .....c.ooiiiiiiiee e 903,175 $0.83
(@3 221 11T SRRSO PR UTURSRRRPOR 247,999 1.03
EXEICISEA cetvitiieiiiet et eeeienie e na ettt e e se e sbeea sasae st ese b s b e e eba (38,000) 048
FOrfeIted ..ottt ettt (3.950) 2.40
Outstanding as of May 31,2003 ..o 1,109,224 $0.88
(€ 1141 (T« DS TR 161,666 1.91
EXEICISEA . cuuiiiiieiiieiiesie it ettt n e e enr s s e sanereas (16,500) 0.47
FOIfEIEA ..ttt (25.000) 1.86
Outstanding as of May 31, 2004 ........ccooiiiniiic e 1,229,390 $0.91
A summary of options outstanding and exercisable as of May 31, 2004 follows:
Weighted- Weighted-
Weighted- Average Average
Exercise Average Remaining Exercise Price of
Options Price Exercise Contractual Options Exercisable
Qutstanding Range Price Life Exercisable Options
329,000 $025-%0.39 $ 027 6.11 329,000 $ 0.27
532,333 $0.51-%0.61 $ 0.5 6.04 532,333 $ 0.55
91,666 $1.00-%1.50 $ 133 8.51 76,666 $ 135
175,666 $1.70-52.16 $ 190 9.45 56,500 $ 2.07
100,725 $3.5625- $ 4.00 $ 393 4.53 100,725 $ 3.93
1,229,390 $0.25 - $4.00 $ 1.00 6.60 1,095,224 $ 091

NOTE 15 -- COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Lease Commitments

The Company leases certain facilities and equipment. The facility leases contain escalation clauses based on the
Consumer Price Index and provisions for payment of real estate taxes, insurance, and maintenance and repair expenses.
Total rental expense for all operating leases was $0.6 million in each of the fiscal years ended May 31, 2004, 2003, and

2002.

Future minimum payments, by year and in the aggregate, under non-cancelable operating leases with initial or

remaining terms of one year or more, consist of the following at May 31, 2004:

Fiscal Year

31

Operating 1.eases
(Amounts in thousands)

$ 509
369

53
_3
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Other Commitments and Contingencies

1

)

3

4

A contract with one existing client requires the Company to maintain a performance bond throughout the contract term.
At May 31, 2004, the Company maintained a $600,000 performance bond in compliance with this requirement.

Related to the Company’s discontinued hospital operations, Medicare guidelines allow the Medicare fiscal
intermediary to re-open previously filed cost reports. Management believes that the Company’s Fiscal 1998 and 1999
cost reports remain eligible for re-opening at some future date, in which case the intermediary may determine that
additional amounts are due to or from Medicare.

The Company is subject to the requirements of the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996
(“HIPAA”). The purpose of the HIPAA provisions is to improve the efficiency and effectiveness of the healthcare
system through standardization of the electronic data interchange of certain administrative and financial transactions
and, also, to protect the security and privacy of protected health information. Entities subject to HIPAA include some
healthcare providers and all healthcare plans. To meet the specific requirements of HIPAA, the Company recently
determined it needed to make a significant investment in its current information system or in a new information system
that would better meet the Company’s future needs. As a result, the Company has entered into a Software License
Maintenance and Services Agreement with Qualifacts Systems, Inc. (“Qualifacts”), a vendor that has provided the
Company with an immediate, temporary solution to meet HIPAA compliance rules specific to the Electronic Health
Care Transactions and Code Sets Standards Model Compliance Plan with the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid
Services and, additionally, to design a new, customized management information system that will enable the Company
to continue to meet HIPAA requirements in the future. The Company expects to incur a total of approximately $0.4
million of costs to customize the Qualifacts system and activate the licenses needed for Qualifacts and other, related
third-party software.

On February 19, 1999, the California Superior Court denied the Company’s Petition for Writ of Mandate of an adverse
administrative appeal decision regarding application of the Maximum Inpatient Reimbursement Limitation to Medi-Cal
reimbursement paid to Brea Neuropsychiatric Hospital for its fiscal periods 1983 through 1986. The Company owned
this facility until its disposal in fiscal year 1991. The subject matter of the Superior Court action involved the refusal
of the administrative law judge to order further reductions in the liability for costs associated with treating high cost,
fong stay Medi-Cal patients, which are commonly referred to as “outliers.”

In July 2002, the Company entered into a Repayment Agreement with the Department to resolve this liability, recorded
at $950,000 at May 31, 2002, at a substantially reduced amount. The terms of the Repayment Agreement required the
Company to either 1) pay one lump sum of $450,000 to the Department on or before September 1, 2002 or 2)
beginning September 1, 2002, the Company would be required to make three monthly installment payments of
$160,000 each, with the last payment being due on or before November 1, 2002, for a total of $480,000 as full and
complete satisfaction of the outstanding liability. As of November 30, 2002, after making three installment payments
to the Department of $160,000 each, the Company had fully satisfied its obligations under the terms of the settlement
agreement. As a result, the Company recorded a non-operating gain of $470,000 on settlement of the liability during
the quarter ended November 30, 2002, which has been classified as discontinued operations in the accompanying
financial statements.

From time to time, the Company and its subsidiaries are also parties and their property is subject to ordinary,

routine litigation incidental to their business, in which case claims may exceed insurance policy limits and the Company or
any one of its subsidiaries may have exposure to a liability that is not covered by insurance. Management is not aware of
any such lawsuits that could have a material adverse impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.
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NOTE 16 -- QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)

FISCAL 2004 Quarter Ended Fiscal Year
8/31/03 11/30/03 2/29/04 5/31/04 Total
(Amounts in thousands, except per share data)
OPEraAting FEVENUES .........c.cvrriirearieiieerinioreesiemias st oot en s $7.893 7.011 6,348 6,331 27.583
GOS8 PROTIE. ... e e e e 1.041 _812 _828 _124 3405
General and adminiStrative EXpenses .......c..ccoverivirenn s 908 970 799 708 3,385
Provision for (recovery of) doubtful accounts..............cccceevvveiiiiiinn (8) %) (2) 7 (@]
Depreciation and amortization ..........cccocviiniiniin e 27 28 27 25 107
OLhEr EXPENSE ....e.ivevcrititeeir et 35 _ 48 3 _52 208
Income (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes ............ 79 (230) (69) 68) (288)
IRCOME EAX @XPRIISE. ..o e _3 9 3 102
Income (loss) from continuing operations ... . (233) (78) (141) (390)
Loss from discontinued operations ..., - - - (387
INEEIOSS ..ottt st (233) @ (141 @
Income (loss) per common share — basic:
Income (loss) from continuing operations ................ccoceeieinreeiienn, $ 0.02 {0.06) (0.02) (0.03) (0.09)
Loss from discontinued operations .............c.ccoceeevininiinininn, (0.10) - - - (0.09)
INEEEOSS 1...ovoricaieescaee et ciea ettt e $0.08) ©.06) 0.02) 0.03) Q.18
Income (loss) per common share - diluted:
Income (loss) fram continuing operations ..., $ 0.01 (0.06) (0.02) (0.03) (0.09)
Loss from discontinued operations ...............ccococniniiiiiiiiniiinnan 0.08) - - - 0.09)
NEELOSS ..ottt v e es e ca s s b nacn e ossa s b st isb e $0.07) 0.06) 0.02) 0.03) 0.18)
Weighted Average Common Shares Outstanding - basic ..., 3,937 3942 4,585 4,672 4,284
Weighted Average Common Shares Qutstanding - diluted ....................... 4,725 3,942 4,585 4,672 4,284
FISCAL 2003 Quarter Ended Fiscal Year
8/31/02 11/30/02  (e) _ 2/28/03 (e) 5/31/03 () Total (e)
(Amounts in thousands, except per share data)
OPEratilE TEVENUES ....o.covririnicciinriners i $8.307 8.631 1973 7.193 32,104
GrOSS PFOfIt........ovieineieerc et _954 _871 _746 332 2903
General and adminiStrative EXPENSEs ........occvvoviveeiirreiriees e, 388 952 77 848 3,459
Provision for (recovery of) doubtful accounts. . (8) 6) 19 15 20
Depreciation and amortization.............ccooorimveiiii i 68 63 37 27 195
Net gain on IRS settlement ..o - -- (7,717 -- 7,717
O EXPEINSE ....ooveernrivereirrr e eress e b s ab e 32 22 _ 1t _36 _lot
Income (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes .............. (26) (160) 7,625 (594) 6,845
I0COME EAX EXPEISE.......vveieiciiec ittt _1 _3 1 _3 _ 20
Income (loss) from continuing oPerations ................ccooeeeeciieiiciien, (33) (163) 7,618 (597) 6,825
Income from discontinued 0perations .............c.cco.cooeinvervniinincnenniens - 470 (a) __88 ©) 75 (d) _633
INEt (JOSS) FMCOME ...ovovriiviieriierrire e ncrcnicos st ess s e $ 33 307 1,706 (b) (522) 1458
Income (loss) per common share — basic:
Income (loss) from continuing operations ..., $(0.01) 0.04) 195 (0.15) 1.75
Income from discontinued operations 0.12 0.02 0.02 0.16
Net (10SS) IMCOMIE. c..crvvrer oot bbb 0.08 197 Q.13) 191
Income (loss) per common share — diluted:
Income (loss) from continuing operations ... $(0.01) 0.04) 1.69 (0.15) 1.57
Income from discontinued operations.................cocin s - 0.11 0.02 0.02 0.15
INEt (10SS) IMCOMIC ... et eescs e $(0.01) 0.07 171 [(1IB)) L2
Weighted Average Common Shares Qutstanding - basic ..., 3,879 3.898 3.908 3,929 3.905
Weighted Average Common Shares Outstanding - diluted ........................ 3.879 4254 4,509 3.929 4343

(a) Includes a $470,000 gain on settlement of the Medi-Cal liability.

(b) Inciudes the $7.7 million gain in settiement of the IRS matter (see Note 12 — “Income Taxes”).
(¢} Includes $88,000 related to a favorable cost report settlement that was completed during the fiscal year ended May 31, 2003 pertaining to the

Company’s hospital business segment that was discontinued in Fiscal 1999.
(d) Includes $75,000 related to the elimination of the Company’s reserve for cost report settlements (see (c) above).
(e) Reclassified to reflect items related to discontinued operations (see Note 9).
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS

(a) OnlJune 1, 2004, the Company dismissed Eisner LLP ("Eisner") as its independent registered public accounting firm.
The determination to dismiss Eisner was made by the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company
and was prompted by economic considerations and, also, the Company’s desire to engage a firm with local presence.
Eisner’s New York office had audited the Company's consolidated financial statements for each of the two years
ended May 31, 2003, and with respect to which had included in its reports a “going concern” uncertainty. These
reports did not contain any adverse opinion, disclaimer of opinion, or qualification or modification as to audit scope
or accounting principles. Since their retention as the Company's independent registered public accounting firm and
through June 1, 2004, there were no disagreements with Eisner on any matter of accounting principles or practices,
financial statement disclosure, or auditing scope or procedure, which disagreements if not resolved to Eisner's
satisfaction would have caused Eisner to make reference thereto in their report on the consolidated financial
statements of the Company for such years. During the period of their retention there were no reportable events as
defined in Item 304(a)(1)(v) of Regulation S-K.

(b) New Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm. On June 1, 2004, the Audit Committee of the Board of
Directors of the Company appointed Kirkland, Russ, Murphy & Tapp P.A. ("KRMT") to serve as its independent
registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year ending May 31, 2004. In the years ended May 31, 2003 and
2002, the Company did not consult KRMT with respect to the application of accounting principles to a specified
transaction, either completed or proposed, or the type of audit opinion that might be rendered on the Company’s
consolidated financial statements, or any other matters or reportable events as set forth in Items 304(a)(2)(i) and (ii)
of Regulation S-K.

ITEM 9a. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of the Company's Disclosure Controls and Internal Controls. As of the end of the period covered by this
report on Form 10-K, the Company evaluated the effectiveness of the design and operation of its "disclosure controls and
procedures" ("Disclosure Controls"), and its "internal controls and procedures for financial reporting" ("Internal Controls").
This evaluation (the "Controls Evaluation") was done under the supervision and with the participation of our Chief
Executive Ofticer ("CEO") and Chief Financial Officer ("CFO"). Rules adopted by the Securities and Exchange
Commission (“SEC”) require that in this section of the Annual Report on Form 10-K we present the conclusions of the
CEO and the CFO about the effectiveness of our Disclosure Controls and Internal Controls based on and as of the date of
the Controls Evaluation.

Disclosure Controls and Internal Controls. As provided in Rule 13a-14 of the General Rules and Regulations under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, Disclosure Controls are defined as meaning controls and procedures that are
designed with the objective of insuring that information required to be disclosed in our reports filed under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act"), is recorded, processed, designed and reported within the time
periods specified by the SEC’s rules and forms. Disclosure Controls include, within the definition under the Exchange Act,
and without limitation, controls and procedures designed to insure that information required to be disclosed by us in our
reports is accumulated and communicated to our management including our CEO and CFO, as appropriate, to allow timely
decisions regarding disclosure. Internal Controls are procedures which are designed with the objective of providing
reasonable assurance that (1) our transactions are properly authorized; (2) our assets are safeguarded against unauthorized
or improper use; and (3) our transactions are properly recorded and reported, all to permit the preparation of our
consolidated financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.

Scope of the Controls Evaluation. The evaluation made by our CEO and CFO of our Disclosure Controls and our
Internal Controls included a review of the controls' objectives and design, the controls' implementation by the Company
and the effect of the controls on the information generated for use in this Form 10-K. In the course of the Controls
Evaluation, we sought to identify data errors, control problems or acts of fraud and to confirm that appropriate corrective
action, including process improvements, were being undertaken. This type of evaluation will be done on a quarterly basis
so that the conclusions concerning controls effectiveness can be reported in our Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q and
Annual Report on Form 10-K. The overall goals of these various evaluation activities are to monitor our Disclosure
Controls and our Internal Controls and to make modifications as necessary; our intent in this regard is that the Disclosure
Controls and the Internal Controls will be maintained as dynamic systems that change (including with improvements and
corrections) as conditions warrant.

Among other matters, we sought in our evaluation to determine whether there were any "significant deficiencies” or
"material weaknesses" in the Company's Internal Controls, or whether the Company had identified any acts of fraud
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involving personnel who have a significant role in the Company's Internal Controls. In the professional auditing literature,
"significant deficiencies" are referred to as “reportable conditions"; these are control issues that could have a significant
adverse effect on the ability to record, process, summarize and report financial data in the consolidated financial statements.
A "material weakness" is defined in the auditing literature as a particularly serious reportable condition where the internal
control does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud may occur in amounts
that would be material in relation to the financial statements and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the
normal course of performing their assigned functions. We also sought to deal with other controls matters in the Controls
Evaluation, and in each case if a problem was identified, we considered what revision, improvement and/or correction to
make in accordance with our on-going procedures.

The Company's management, including the CEQO and CFO, does not expect that our Disclosure Controls or our Internal
Controls will prevent all errors and all fraud. A control system, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide
only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the control system's objectives will be met. Further, the design of a control
system must reflect the fact that there are resource constraints, and the benefits of controls must be considered relative to
their costs. Because of the inherent limitations in all control systems, no evaluation of controls can provide absolute
assurance that all control issues and instances of fraud, if any, within the Company have been detected. These inherent
limitations include the realities that judgments in decision-making can be faulty, and that breakdowns can occur because of
simple error or mistake. Controls can also be circumvented by the individual acts of some persons, by collusion of two or
more people, or by management override of the controls. The design of any system of controls is based in part upon certain
assumptions about the likelihood of future events, and there can be no assurance that any design will succeed in achieving
its stated goals under all potential future conditions. Over time, controls may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions or deterioration in the degree of compliance with its policies or procedures. Because of the inherent limitations
in a cost-effective control system, misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.

Conclusion. Based on their evaluation, as of the end of the period covered by this annual report of the effectiveness of our
Disclosure Controls, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have each concluded that our Disclosure
Controls are effective and sufficient to ensure that we record, process, summarize, and report information required to be
disclosed by us in our periodic reports filed under the Securities Exchange Act within the time periods specified by the
Securities and Exchange Commission’s rules and forms.

Subsequent to the date of their evaluation, there have not been any significant changes in our Internal Controls or in other
factors to our knowledge that could significantly affect these controls, including any corrective action with regard to
significant deficiencies and material weaknesses. The design of any system of controls and procedures is based in part
upon certain assumptions about the likelihood of future events.

PART III

ITEM 10. EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY

The executive officers and directors of the Company are as follows:

NAME AGE POSITION
Mary Jane Johnson 54 President™®, Chief Executive Officer'®, and Director '@
Robert J. Landis 45 Chairman of the Board of Directors®®,

Chief Financial Officer "®, and Treasurer )@

Thomas Clay 56 Chief Development Officer®
Cathy J. Welch 44 Secretary™®, Vice President of Finance/Controller"®
Eugene L. Froelich 62 Director"’
Howard A. Savin 58 Director®

Y Comprehensive Care Corporation.”” Comprehensive Behavioral Care, Inc. (Principal operating subsidiary of the Company).

Y Mr. Froelich and Dr. Savin are each members of the Audit Committee. Mr. Froelich is the Audit Committee Financial Expert as that term is defined
under General Rules and Regulations under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. Mr. Froelich is “independent” as defined by Rule
4200(a)(14) of the Marketplace Rules of the Nasdaq Stock Market.
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MARY JANE JOHNSON, RN, MBA, age 54. Ms. Johnson has served as President and Chief Executive Officer
since January 2000. In April 1999, Ms. Johnson was elected a Class I director with her current term expiring at the 2006
Annual Meeting. Since joining the Company in August 1996, Ms. Johnson has also served as Chief Operating Officer of
Comprehensive Care Corporation, an appointment that was effective July 1999, and as Chief Executive Officer for the
Company’s principal subsidiary, Comprehensive Behavioral Care, Inc., since August 1998. Ms. Johnson served as
Executive Director for Merit Behavioral Care from 1993 to 1996. Ms. Johnson, a Registered Professional Nurse, has a
Bachelors Degree in Nursing from the State University of New York and a Masters Degree in Business Administration
from Adelphi University.

ROBERT J. LANDIS, CPA, MBA, age 45. Mr. Landis has served as Chairman of the Board of Directors since
January 2000 and as Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer since July 1998. In April 1999, Mr. Landis was elected a Class
111 director with his current term expiring at the 2004 Annual Meeting. Mr. Landis served as Treasurer of Maxicare Health
Plans, Inc., a health maintenance organization, from November 1988 to July 1998. Mr. Landis also serves on the Board of
Directors and on the audit committee of Global Axcess Corporation, a company that owns and operates automatic teller
machines, whose common stock is publicly traded on the Over The Counter Bulletin Board. Mr. Landis, a Certified Public
Accountant, received a Bachelors Degree in Business Administration from the University of Southern California and a
Masters Degree in Business Administration from California State University at Northridge.

THOMAS CLAY, MSW, age 56. Mr. Clay has been employed by CompCare since December 1999 and currently
serves as the Chief Development Officer for Comprehensive Behavioral Care, Inc. (“CBC”) having served as President,
Public Sector Services since June 2002. Mr. Clay previously served as CBC’s Senior Vice President of Clinical Operations
from October 2000 through May 2002, During 1997, until joining the Company, Mr. Clay worked as a behavioral
healthcare consultant specializing in adapting managed care technology to public sector services for providers and
behavioral healthcare organizations. From January 1991 through July 1997, Mr. Clay served in a variety of executive
positions for Tarrant County Mental Health Mental Retardation Services in Fort Worth, Texas. Mr. Clay received a Master
of Social Work degree from Tulane University and a Bachelor of Arts Degree in Psychology from the University of Texas
at Austin,

CATHY J. WELCH, CPA, age 44. Ms. Welch has been employed by the Company since February 1998, having
served as Controller since February 1999 and Vice President of Finance and Controller since July 1999. In January 2000,
Ms. Welch was appointed to the position of Corporate Secretary for the Company. Prior to her employment with
CompCare, Ms. Welch served in a variety of financial positions for Columbia/HCA hospitals from November 1993 through
June 1997. Ms. Welch, a Certified Public Accountant, received a Bachelor of Arts Degree in Business Administration from
the University of South Florida.

EUGENE L. FROELICH, CPA, age 62. In January 2003, the Board of Directors appointed Mr. Froelich to fill an
existing vacancy for a Class 11 Director until the expiration date of the term for this director seat, which is currently the
2005 Annual Meeting. Additionally, Mr. Froelich is the Chairman of the Company’s Audit Committee and he is the Audit
Committee Financial Expert as that term is defined under General Rules and Regulations under the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934, as amended. He also serves on the Company’s Compensation Committee. Mr. Froelich has more than 30 years of
financial experience and has served as an executive to several publicly held healthcare, entertainment, and high tech
corporations and is currently working as a consultant in these industries. From April 2001 to October 2001, Mr. Froelich
served as Chief Financial Officer of Futurelink Corp., a publicly traded company, engaged in the technology information
sector. Futurelink Corp. had filed for protection under Chapter 11 of the federal bankruptcy code in August 2001 and,
following such filing, Mr. Froelich voluntarily resigned his position with Futurelink Corp. From July 2000 to April 2001,
Mr. Froelich was Chief Financial Officer of Wizshop.com, a private company, engaged in the Internet retail business.
From 1998 to 2000, Mr. Froelich acted as an independent consulitant and advisor to various corporations. During the period
from 1989 to 1998, Mr. Froelich was Chief Financial Officer and Executive Vice President of Maxicare Health Plans, Inc.
(“Maxicare"), a publicly traded corporation operating under Chapter 11 of the federal bankruptcy code at the time Mr.
Froelich joined Maxicare in 1989.

HOWARD A. SAVIN, Ph.D,, age 58. In June 2002, Dr. Savin was appointed as a Class II director, with his
current term expiring at the 2005 Annual Meeting, to fill an existing vacancy of the Board of Directors. Additionally, Dr.
Savin is the Chairman of the Company’s Compensation Committee and he serves on the Company’s Audit Committee. Dr.
Savin currently serves as President of his own consulting firm, Behavioral Health Care Solutions, and as Senior Consultant
for the Devereux Foundation, an organization engaged in providing high-quality human services to children, adults, and
families with special needs that derive from behavioral, psychological, intellectual or neurological impairments. Dr. Savin
was previously Senior Vice President of Clinical Affairs at the Devereux Foundation from July 1, 1995 through June 30,
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2004. From November 1993 to December 1994, Dr. Savin served as Vice President of Medco Behavioral Care Corp.,
which later became Merit Behavioral Health and Magellan. Dr. Savin holds a Masters Degree in Psychology from the
University of Bridgeport and a Ph.D. from the University of Georgia.

Audit Committee

The Board of Directors has constituted an Audit Committee comprised of two independent directors, as that term is
defined under the General Rules and Regulations under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Act"). Mr.
Eugene L. Froelich is the Chairman of the Audit Committee and is the Audit Committee Financial Expert. The Audit
Committee has responsibility for the appointment, compensation, retention and oversight of the Company's independent
auditors; establishing procedures for the receipt, retention and treatment of complaints regarding accounting, internal
controls or auditing matters, and procedures for the submission of confidential, anonymous concerns by employees
regarding questionable accounting or auditing matters.

The Audit Committee has, as required by the Act and Section 301 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, adopted a
‘whistleblower policy' providing for the receipt, retention and treatment of complaints received by the Company regarding
accounting, internal accounting controls or auditing matters and the confidential, anonymous submission by employees of
the Company of concerns regarding questionable accounting or auditing matters.

Code of Conduct

The Board of Directors has adopted a Code of Conduct applicable to all officers, directors and employees of the
Company which provides, among other things, for honest and ethical conduct; avoidance of conflicts of interest, including
the disclosure of any material transaction or relationship that could be expected to give rise to a conflict; full, fair, accurate,
and timely and understandable disclosure in reports filed by the Company with the Securities and Exchange Commission;
internal reporting of Code of Conduct violations; and accountability for any violations.
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COMPREHENSIVE CARE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
COMPENSATION COMMITTEE

The Compensation Committee reviews the Company's compensation programs and exercises authority with respect
to the payment of salaries and incentive compensation to the Company's executive officers. The Compensation Committee
also administers the Company's 1995 and 2002 Stock Option Plans.

Compensation Committee Report Regarding Compensation of Executive Officers

In June 2002, the election of Howard Savin, Ph.D. as an independent director enabled the Company to re-establish
a Compensation and Stock Option Committee (“Committee”). Dr. Savin, as Chairman of the Committee, was joined in
January of 2003 by newly appointed Director Eugene Froelich. Prior to June 2002, and at any time during the absence of
independent directors to comprise a compensation committee, the Board of Directors fulfilled such responsibilities. The
newly formed Committee continues to adhere to the same philosophies and goals regarding executive compensation that
have guided previous compensation committees and the Board of Directors. These philosophies and key components of
executive compensation are discussed below.

Overview and Philosophy

The Compensation and Stock Option Committee’s policies are designed to enable the Company to attract and
retain outstanding executives in the healthcare industry to assist the Company in meeting its long-range objectives, thereby
serving the interests of the Company's stockholders. The Committee’s compensation philosophy is to provide rewards that
(1) are linked to both Company performance and individual performance, (2) align employee interests with shareholder
interests, (3) are sufficient to attract and retain high-quality employees, and (4) provide a mix of cash and potential stock
ownership tied to long-term as well as immediate business strategy.

The current employment agreements of Ms. Johnson and Mr. Landis were approved by the current Compensation
and Stock Option Committee, which is comprised solely of independent directors. The current employment agreements of
all other executive officers of the Company and the Company’s principal operating subsidiary, Comprehensive Behavioral
Care, Inc. were approved by the Board of Directors.

Executive Officer Compensation

The following key principles guide the Compensation and Stock Option Committee in structuring compensation targets and
packages of executive officers and key management:

o Total annual compensation will include salary as the core compensation plus options to purchase shares of the
Company’s Common Stock, the value of which is a function of the market price, which is an extension of
stockholder interests.

e Management development - support of compensation opportunity structures to attract and retain individuals who
can maximize the creation of stockholder value, and motivate employees to attain Company and individual
objectives.

e Recognition of individual contributions as well as overall Company results toward identified business results.

o Competitive position of both base salary and total compensation within the healthcare industry.

Components of Executive Compensation

The components of executive compensation for each of the Company's four named executive officers included a
base salary, provision for an annual incentive bonus, and provisions for the award of stock options. Ms. Johnson and Mr.
Landis each have employment agreements, which were approved by the current Compensation and Stock Option
Committee, which took into account the skills, knowledge and experience that each of the executive officers brought to
their positions. The base salary of each executive officer is intended to be maintained at slightly above the median range of
salary for similar positions at public companies that are in the same line of business as the Company and which are of
similar size. Under the terms of their current employment contracts, dated February 7, 2003, Ms. Johnson’s base salary is
currently set at $205,000 per annum and Mr. Landis is to receive $185,000 per annum although each is currently receiving a
base salary of $175,000 per annum. Base salaries for Mr. Clay and Dr. McCarthy were each set by the Board of Directors
at $120,000 per annum.
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Each of the Company's executive officers is eligible to receive an annual performance based incentive bonus or
other such bonus or additional compensation as may be determined from time to time by the Compensation and Stock
Option Committee. There were no cash amounts paid during Fiscal 2004 or Fiscal 2003 in connection with any annual
performance bonus as provided for in the Company’s employment agreements with its executive officers. During Fiscal
2003, Dr. McCarthy was awarded a restricted stock grants totaling 20,001 shares in lieu of any cash-signing bonus, which
was included in Fiscal 2003 executive compensation.

The current employment agreement of each executive officer provides for the award of stock options. In the case
of Ms. Johnson and Mr. Landis, the Compensation and Stock Option Committee determined that each is to receive an
annual grant of options to purchase 25,000 shares of stock. Additionally, the Compensation and Stock Option Committee
reserves the right to increase the Annual Stock Options award based on exceptional performance by the Executive. In the
case of Mr. Clay and Dr. McCarthy, each is eligible for participation in periodic grants of stock options as determined by
the Compensation and Stock Option Committee at its discretion.  During Fiscal 2004, Ms. Johnson and Mr. Landis
received grants for a total of 25,000 stock options each while Mr. Clay and Dr. McCarthy were granted a total of 10,000
stock options each.

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENTS WITH EXECUTIVES

Effective February 1, 2003, the Company entered into a new employment agreement with Mary Jane Johnson.
Such agreement, which superceded the previous agreement entered into in July of 1999, terminates May 31, 2006 and is
subject to two 18-month extensions. Ms. Johnson’s employment agreement provides for a salary of $205,000 per annum
and includes an annual performance bonus based on the Company’s earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and
amortization (“EBITDA”). Such annual performance bonus shall be equal to the greater of 2 4% of the Company’s
EBITDA, or $25,000. Ms. Johnson is provided an auto allowance of $250 biweekly as well as a policy of life insurance. In
addition, the Company pays for a portion of Ms. Johnson’s health insurance and other group insurance premiums in
accordance with the Company’s general benefit guidelines covering all full-time employees. Ms. Johnson’s employment
agreement provides that in the event of a change in control of the Company, or in the case of termination without cause,
Ms. Johnson will be paid a severance benefit equal to twenty four (24) months base salary, together with her performance
bonus. Ms. Johnson is additionally eligible to receive a special transaction bonus should the company merge with or into
another entity in which the Company is not the surviving entity, or if the Company sells all or substantially all of its assets
and the special transaction is $5.0 million or greater. The special transaction bonus shall be an amount equal to 1% of the
special transaction value in excess of $5.0 million. Effective with the 2003 Annual Meeting of Stockholders and annually
coincident with such meetings, Ms. Johnson will be granted options to purchase 25,000 shares of the Company’s common
stock. The options will bear an exercise price of the fair market value of the Company’s stock on the date of grant and will
vest within one year of such date. Ms. Johnson’s employment agreement may be terminated by either party in accordance
with its terms, which require written notification to the other party at least six months prior to the initial termination date or
renewal termination date.

Effective February 1, 2003, the Company entered into an employment agreement with Robert J. Landis. Such
agreement, which superceded the previous agreement dated September 14, 1998, terminates May 31, 2006 and is subject to
two 18-month extensions. Mr. Landis’ employment agreement provides for a salary of $185,000 per annum and includes
an annual performance bonus based on the Company’s earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization
(“EBITDA”). Such annual performance bonus shall be equal to the greater of 2 2% of the Company’s EBITDA, or
$20,000. In addition, the Company pays for a portion of Mr. Landis’ health insurance and other group insurance
premiums in accordance with the Company’s general benefit guidelines covering all full-time employees. Mr. Landis is
also provided with a policy of life insurance and a $250 biweekly auto allowance. Mr. Landis’ employment agreement
provides that in the event of a change in control of the Company or in the case of termination without cause, Mr. Landis
will be paid a severance benefit equal to twenty four (24) months base salary, together with his performance bonus. Mr.
Landis is additionally eligible to receive a special transaction bonus should the company merge with or into another entity
in which the Company is not the surviving entity, or if the Company sells all or substantially ail of its assets and the special
transaction is $5.0 million or greater. The special transaction bonus shall be an amount equal to 1% of the special
transaction value in excess of $5.0 million.  Effective with the 2003 Annual Meeting of Stockholders and annually
coincident with such meetings, Mr. Landis will be granted options to purchase 25,000 shares of the Company’s common
stock. The options will bear an exercise price of the fair market value of the Company’s stock on the date of grant and will
vest within one year of such date. Mr. Landis’ employment agreement may be terminated by either party in accordance
with its terms, which require written notification to the other party at least six months prior to the initial termination date or
renewal termination date.
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On June 3, 2002, the Company entered into an employment agreement with Thomas Clay. Mr. Clay’s employment
agreement provides for a salary at the rate of $120,000 per annum and includes a performance-based bonus not to exceed
$20,000 per annum, which will be based 20% on individual performance and 80% on the Company’s financial performance
against set criteria. In addition, Mr. Clay is eligible to participate in the Company’s Sales Incentive Plan, a commission
program designed to compensate the Company’s sales and marketing staff in proportion to their individual contributions to
the Company’s sales and marketing objectives. Mr. Clay is provided with a policy of life insurance and the Company pays
for a portion of Mr. Clay’s health insurance and other group insurance premiums in accordance with the Company’s general
benefit guidelines covering all full-time employees. Mr. Clay’s employment agreement provides that, in the event of a
change in control of the Company as defined, Mr. Clay will be paid a severance benefit equal to six (6) months base salary
or, in the case of termination without cause, Mr. Clay will be paid a severance benefit equal to three (3) months base salary.
Mr. Clay’s employment agreement continues unless terminated by either party in accordance with the terms of the
employment agreement.

On June 3, 2002, the Company entered into an employment agreement with Paul R. McCarthy, Ph.D. Dr.
McCarthy’s employment agreement provided for a salary at the rate of $120,000 per annum and included a performance-
based bonus not to exceed $20,000 per annum, to be based 20% on individual performance and 80% on the Company’s
financial performance against set criteria. Dr. McCarthy was provided with a policy of life insurance and the Company paid
for a portion of Dr. McCarthy’s health insurance and other group insurance premiums in accordance with the Company’s
general benefit guidelines covering all full-time employees. Dr. McCarthy’s employment agreement provided that, in the
event of a change in control of the Company as defined, Dr. McCarthy would be paid a severance benefit equal to six (6)
months base salary or, in the case of termination without cause, Dr. McCarthy would be paid a severance benefit equal to
three (3) months base salary. Effective December 31, 2003, in connection with the Company’s ongoing expense reduction
efforts, Dr. McCarthy was separated from the Company without cause.

Effective July 2, 1999, the Board awarded stay bonuses to Ms. Johnson and Mr. Landis in amounts not to exceed
the greater of: $150,000 or 85% of the current base salary, and $125,000 or 83% of the current base salary, respectively, not
payable uniess each remained employed by the Company through December 31, 2000. Effective January 1, 2001, Ms.
Johnson and Mr. Landis each were entitled to receive $150,000 and $145,250, respectively, in connection with these stay
bonus awards. As an accommodation to the Company, the two executive officers consented to a deferral of the receipt of
their stay bonus. During Fiscal 2001, Ms. Johnson and Mr. Landis each were paid $50,000. During Fiscal 2002, Ms.
Johnson was paid $100,000 and Mr. Landis, $50,000. In the fiscal years ended May 31, 2003 and 2004, Mr. Landis
received $15,250 and $20,000, respectively, related to this bonus.

Effective July 6, 2001, a restricted stock grant of 20,000 shares, 19,500 shares, and 5,000 shares of the Company’s
Common Stock was made to Ms. Johnson, Mr. Landis, and Mr. Clay, respectively, and was included in Fiscal 2002
executive compensation. Such shares were valued at $0.51 per share, representing the fair market value of the Company’s
Common Stock on July 6, 2001. During Fiscal 2003, Dr. McCarthy was awarded two restricted stock grants for a total of
20,001 shares of the Company’s Common Stock to be included in Fiscal 2003 executive compensation. The initial award
was for 6,667 shares, valued at $1.50 per share, representing the fair market value of the Company’s Common Stock on
June 3, 2002. The second award to Dr. McCarthy was for 13,334 shares, valued at $0.75 per share, representing the fair
market value of the Company's Common Stock on September 5, 2002.

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE INTERLOCKS AND INSIDER PARTICIPATION
Our Compensation Committee is currently composed of Dr. Savin and Mr. Froelich. No member of the
Compensation Committee is currently or was formerly an officer or an émployee of Comprehensive Care Corporation or its

subsidiaries. There are no compensation committee interlocks and no insider participation in compensation decisions that
are required to be reported under the rules and regulations of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.
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PERFORMANCE GRAPH

The following is a line graph comparing the Company's total stockholder returns to those of the NASDAQ Health
Services Index and a Comparable Company Index (including the Company, PHC, Inc., Magellan Health Services, Inc. and
Horizon Health Corp.) for each year in the period from June 1, 1999 and ended May 31, 2004, The Company’s Common
Stock is traded on the Over The Counter Bulletin Board and, accordingly, the Company has selected the NASDAQ Health
Services Index as an appropriate index for this graph. Total return values were calculated based on cumulative total return,
assuming the value of the investment in the Company's Common Stock, and in each index, was $100 and that all dividends
were reinvested.

COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN
AMONG COMPREHENSIVE CARE CORPORATION,
THE NASDAQ HEALTH SERVICES INDEX AND A PEER GROUP

5/99 5/00 5/01 5/02 5/03 5/04

—#— COMPREHENSIVE CARE CORPORATION
— & — NASDAQ HEALTH SERVICES
- - ® - -PEER GROUP

ASSUMES 3100 INVESTED ON JUNE 1, 1999
ASSUMES DIVIDENDS REINVESTED
FIVE FISCAL YEARS ENDED MAY 31, 2004

1999 May 2000 May 2001 May2002 May2003 May 2004
Comprehensive Care Corporation  100.00 42.00 90.00 320.00 560.00 320.00
Comparable Company Index 100.00 36.28 142.69 90.43 31.36 42.34
NASDAQ Health Services Index  100.00 73.12 113.89 140.10 115.01 169.39
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SECTION 16(A) BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP REPORTING COMPLIANCE

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended requires the Company’s officers and directors,
and persons who own more than ten percent of a registered class of the Company’s equity securities, to file reports of
ownership and changes in ownership with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”). Officers, directors, and
greater than ten-percent stockholders are required by SEC regulations to furnish the Company with all copies of all Section
16(a) forms they file. The Company believes that its officers, directors and greater than ten-percent beneficial owners
complied with all applicable Section 16(a) filing requirements during the fiscal year ended May 31, 2004. In making such
determination specific to greater than ten-percent beneficial owners, we relied on information obtained from Schedule 13G
filed by Mr. Harry Ross on December 17, 2003 and dated December 8, 2003.

INDEMNIFICATION OF OFFICERS AND DIRECTORS

In connection with the Company’s indemnification program for executive officers and directors, Ms. Johnson, Mr.
Landis, and Mr. Clay as well as five current, key management employees, directors, or subsidiary directors, eleven former
directors, and eleven former executive officers, are entitled to indemnification and are beneficiaries of the officers and
directors indemnification trust (as defined below).

Upon written demand for payment by the person designated in the Trust Agreement as Beneficiary Representative
accompanied by a “Notice of Qualification” (as defined below), the Trustee shall pay the person designated in the Trust
Agreement (“Underwriter”) to administer the payments to the accounts of Indemnitees an amount not greater than the
balance, if any, of the specified bookkeeping account (“Account”) recorded by the Trustee for each Indemnitee. A “Notice
of Qualification” is a written statement by the Beneficiary Representative which (i) states the date and action on which the
policyholder is obligated to Indemnitee(s) under the terms of the Indemnification Agreement, (ii) certifies that, pursuant to
the terms of the Indemnification Agreement, the Indemnitees are entitled to payment thereunder as a result of the
investigation, claim, action, suit or proceeding, and (iii) states the amount of the payment to which the Underwriter is
entitled. Upon the receipt of a demand, the Trustee shall promptly inform the Company of such receipt, by courier delivery
to the Company, of written notice thereof. Subject to any contrary order issued by a court of competent jurisdiction, a
payment made pursuant to this Section may be made without the approval or direction of the Company, and shall be made
despite any direction to the contrary by the Company. Prior to the time amounts are to be paid to the Underwriter or his
designee from the Trust Fund as described above, Indemnitees have no preferred claim or beneficial ownership interest in
trust funds, and their rights are merely unsecured contractual rights.

The Company considers it desirable to provide each Indemnitee with specified assurances that the Company can

and will honor the Company's obligations under the Indemnification Agreements, including a policy of insurance to provide
for directors and officers liability coverage.
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TABLE IT — OPTIONS HELD AT MAY 31, 2004
The following tables present information regarding the number of options granted to and exercised by the
Company’s named executives during Fiscal 2004 and the number of unexercised options held by the Company’s named

executives at May 31, 2004. No stock appreciation rights were granted or held by such persons during Fiscal 2004.

OPTION GRANTS IN THE LAST FISCAL YEAR

Percent of Total

Options/SARS Exercise
Granted to or Base Grant Date
Options Employees in Price Expiration Present
Name Granted Fiscal Year ($/Share) Date Value
Mary Jane Johnson 25,000 19.2% $ 170 01/23/14 $1.2524
Robert J. Landis 25,000 19.2% 1.70 01/23/14 1.2524
Thomas Clay 10,000 7.7% 2.16 11/18/13 1.4725
Paul R. McCarthy * 10,000 7.7% 2.16 11/18/13 1.4725

*Separated from the Company effective December 31, 2003.

The present value as of the date of grant, calculated using the Black-Scholes method is based on assumptions
about future interest rates, stock price volatility and dividend yield. There is no assurance that these assumptions will prove
to be true in the future. The actual value, if any, that may be realized by each individual will depend upon the market price
of the Common Stock on the date of exercise.

AGGREGATED OPTION EXERCISES IN LAST FISCAL YEAR
AND AGGREGATED FISCAL YEAR-END OPTION VALUE

Number of
Securities Value of
Underlying Unexercised In-
Unexercised the-money
Options/SARs at Options/SARs at
Shares Value FY End (#) FY End (8)
Acquired on Realized Exercisable/ Exercisable/
Name Exercise (#) &3] Unexercisable Unexercisable"”
Mary Jane Johnson - -- 270,000/25,000 $277,643/%0
Robert J. Landis - -- 315,625/25,000 277,643/0
Thomas Clay -- - 52,500/5,000 40,910/0

Paul R. McCarthy® 10,000 $11,900 -- --

(1) Calculated on the basis of the closing sale price per share for the Company’s Common Stock on the Over The Counter Bulletin Board of $1.60 on May
28,2004. Value was calculated on the basis of the difference between the option price and $1.60 multiplied by the number of shares of Common Stock
underlying the respective options.

(2) Separated from the Company effective December 31, 2003.
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ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

The following table sets forth certain information known to the Company concerning the beneficial ownership of
Common Stock as of May 31, 2004, by (i) all persons who are beneficial owners of five percent (5%) or more of the
Common Stock, (ii) each director of the Company, and (iii) the executive officers named in the Summary Compensation
Table included elsewhere herein, and (iv) all directors and executive officers as a group in accordance with Section 13(d)(3)
under the general rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) Act of 1934, as amended.
According to rules adopted by the SEC, a person is the “beneficial owner” of securities if he or she has, or shares, the
power to vote such securities or to direct their investment. Unless otherwise indicated, each of the stockholders has sole
voting and investment power with respect to shares beneficially owned and has an address of 204 South Hoover Boulevard,
Suite 200, Tampa, Florida 33609.

SHARES
BENEFICIALLY PERCENT OF COMMON
NAME OF BENEFICIAL QWNER OWNED STOCK QUTSTANDING
Harry Ross®
3622 Reeves Road, Ojai, CA 93023 720,000 15.4%
Mary Jane Johnson® 302,500 6.1%
Robert J. Landis @ 360,125 7.2%
Thomas Clay @ 57,500 1.2%
Howard A. Savin® 31,666 *
Eugene L. Froelich® 13,333 *
All executive officers and directors
As a group (8 persons) 850,124 15.6%

*Less than 1%,

O Includes 5,000 shares of common stock held directly and 52,500 shares subject to options that are presently exercisable. Excludes 5,000 options that

are not presently exercisable.

Includes 20,000 shares of common stock held directly and 282,500 shares subject to options that are presently exercisable or exercisable within 60
days of May 31, 2004. Excludes 12,500 options that are not exercisable within 60 days of May 31, 2004.

Includes 32,000 shares of common stock held directly and 328,125 shares subject to options that are presently exercisable or exercisable within 60
days of May 31, 2004. Excludes 12,500 options that are not exercisable within 60 days of May 31, 2004.

Includes 31,666 options that are presently exercisable or exercisable within 60 days of May 31, 2004. Excludes 20,833 options that are not
exercisable within 60 days of May 31, 2004.

) ncludes 13,333 options that are presently exercisable. Excludes 23,333 options that are not presently exercisable.

©®  Information obtained from Schedule 13G filed by Mr. Ross on December 17, 2003 and dated December 8, 2003,

2
3)

@

EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION

The following table summarizes share and exercise price information with respect to the Company’s equity compensation
plans (including individual compensation arrangements) under which equity securities of Comprehensive Care Corporation
are authorized for issuance as of May 31, 2004:

' S E— () : ) —

Number of securities to Weighted-average Number of securities remaining
Plan category be issued upon exercise exercise price of available for future issuance
of outstanding options, outstanding options, under equity compensation
warrants and rights warrants and rights plans (excluding securities
reflected in column (a))

Equity compensation plans 1,229,390 $0.91 307,569

approved by shareholders

Equity compensation plan: not 100.000 339 B

approved by shareholders -

Total 1,329,390 $L.12 307,569

*Consists of warrants to purchase common stock of the Company issued to three consultants, in lieu of cash compensation, for services provided to the
Company.
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ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

For information relating to the employment agreements with executive officers, stock options, stay bonuses, stock
grants, and other compensation, see the information included in Item 11 above. During the fiscal year ended May 31, 2004,
two executive officers served on the Board of Directors of the Company and, also, on the Board of Directors for each of the
Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary corporations.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

Audit Fees. The aggregate fees billed by Kirkland, Russ, Murphy & Tapp P.A. (“KRMT”) for professional services
rendered in connection with the audit of our annual consolidated financial statements for the fiscal year ended May 31,
2004 were $54,000. In addition, Fiscal 2004 audit fees inciuded $20,000 billed by Eisner LLP in connection with their
review of the consolidated financial statements included in our Form 10-Qs filed during Fiscal 2004.

The aggregate fees billed by Eisner LLP for professional services rendered in connection with the audit of our consolidated
financial statements for the year ended May 31, 2003 and review of the consolidated financial statements included in our
Fiscal 2003 Form 10-Qs were $152,500.

Audit-Related Fees. There were no fees billed by KRMT during Fiscal 2004 or by Eisner LLP during Fiscal 2004 or Fiscal
2003 for assurance and related services.

Tax Fees. No fees were billed by KRMT or by Eisner LLP during Fiscal 2004 for tax-related services, although the
Company has engaged KRMT to prepare its Fiscal 2004 tax returns with expected fees for such services ranging from
$20,000 to $22,000. The aggregate fees billed by Eisner LLP during Fiscal 2003 for tax-related services were $67,133.
Such fees were primarily for tax-consulting services related to the then pending Internal Revenue Service claim, which was
successfully settled in Fiscal 2003.

All Other Fees. There were no fees billed by KRMT during Fiscal 2004 or by Eisner LLP during Fiscal 2004 or Fiscal
2003 for professional services other than the services described under “Audit Fees” and “Tax Fees” above.

PARTIV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES, AND REPORTS ON FORM 8-K

(a) 1. Consolidated Financial Statements - Included in Part II of this report:
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
Consolidated Balance Sheets, May 31, 2004 and 2003
Consolidated Statements of Operations, Years Ended May 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Deficit, Years Ended May 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, Years Ended May 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Consolidated Financial Statement Schedules: None.

Other schedules are omitted, as required information is inapplicable or the information is presented in the
consolidated financial statements or related notes.

3. Exhibits:
Number Description and Reference
3.1 Restated Certificate of Incorporation as amended. ¢

32 Restated Bylaws as amended July 20, 2000, ®

4.1 Indenture dated April 25, 1985 between the Company and Bank of America, NT&SA, relating to
Convertible Subordinated Debentures. (¥

42 Form of Common Stock Certificate. ©

10.1 Form of Stock Option Agreement. *@

102 Form of Indemnity Agreement as amended March 24, 1994, *®
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Directors and Officers Trust dated February 27, 1995 between the Company and Mark Twain Bank.
*(4)

Comprehensive Care Corporation 1995 Incentive Plan, as amended on November 17, 1998. ©

Amended and Restated Non-Employee Director’s Stock Option Plan. *®

Employment agreement as amended February 7, 2003 between the Company and

Robert J. Landis. ¥

Employment agreement as amended February 7, 2003 between the Company and

Mary Jane Johnson, *(”)

Employment agreement dated June 3, 2002 between the Company and Paul R. McCarthy. *!%

Employment agreement dated June 3, 2002 between the Company and Thomas C. Clay. *'%

Comprehensive Care Corporation 2002 Incentive Plan. @

Code of Business Conduct and Ethics. (?

Letter dated June 2, 2004 from Eisner LLP in concurrence with the Company’s statement made
concerning Eisner LLP’s dismissal as the Company’s principal accountant. (%

List of the Company’s active subsidiaries (filed herewith).

Consent of Kirkland, Russ, Murphy & Tapp P.A. (filed herewith).

Consent of Eisner LLP (filed herewith).

Comprehensive Care Corporation CEO Certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley

Act of 2002 (filed herewith).

Comprehensive Care Corporation CFO Certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley

Act of 2002 (filed herewith).

Comprehensive Care Corporation CEO Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (filed herewith).

Comprehensive Care Corporation CFO Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (filed herewith).

Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement with one or more directors or executive officers.

Filed as an exhibit to the Company’s Form S-3 Registration Statement No. 2-97160.
Filed as an exhibit to the Company’s Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended May 31, 1988.
Filed as an exhibit to the Company’s Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended May 31, 1994,
Filed as an exhibit to the Company’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended February 28, 1995.
Filed as an exhibit to the Company’s Form 8-K dated November 9, 1995.

Filed with original filing of Registration Statement on Form S-1, dated January 29, 1997.
Filed as an exhibit to the Company’s Form 8-K dated February 7, 2003.

Filed as an exhibit to the Company’s Form 10-K for the Fiscal Year ended May 31, 2000.
Filed as an exhibit to the Company’s Form 8-K dated November 25, 1998.

(10) Filed as an exhibit to the Company’s Form 8-K dated June 7, 2002.

(11) Filed as an exhibit to the Company’s Form 8-K, dated September 20, 2002.

(12) Filed as an exhibit to the Company’s Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2003.
(13) Filed as an exhibit to the Company’s Form 8-K, dated June 4, 2004.

(b) Reports on Form 8-K.

1)

2)

3)

The Company filed a current report on Form 8-K, dated June 4, 2004, to report under Item 4 that the Company had
dismissed Eisner LLP as its independent public accountants on June 1, 2004 and, additionally, that the Audit
Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company appointed Kirkland, Russ, Murphy & Tapp P.A. to serve as its
independent registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2004,

The Company filed a current report on Form 8-K, dated May 20, 2004, to report under Item 5 that the Company had
announced the completion of its beta test in Michigan of the Company’s new behavioral health pharmacy management

program.

The Company filed a current report on Form. 8-K, dated April 12, 2004, to report under Items 7 and 9 that the
Company had updated its “Message from the CEO” letter, which is located on the Company’s stockholder web site at:
www.compcare-shareholders.com.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Sections 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Company has
duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, August 26, 2004.

COMPREHENSIVE CARE CORPORATION

By _/s/ MARY JANE JOHNSON
Mary Jane Johnson
President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

By /s/ __ROBERT J. LANDIS
Robert J. Landis
Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the
following persons on behalf of the Company and in the capacities and on the dates so indicated.

SIGNATURE TITLE DATE

President, Chief Executive Officer,
{s/ MARY JANE JOHNSON and Director August 26, 2004
Mary Jane Johnson

Chairman of the Board of Directors,

Chief Financial Officer, and Treasurer

(Principal Financial and
/s/ ROBERT J. LANDIS Accounting Officer) August 26, 2004
Robert J. Landis

/s/ HOWARD A, SAVIN Director August 26, 2004
Howard A. Savin

{s/_ EUGENE L. FROELICH Director August 26, 2004
Eugene L. Froelich
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Mary Jane Johnson
President, Chief Executive Officer,
and Director

Robert J. Landis

Chairman, Chief Financial Officer,
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Thomas Clay

Chief Development Officer,

Comprehensive Behavioral Care, Inc.

Cathy J. Welch

Corporate Secretary

Eugene L. Froelich
Director and,
Chairman of the Audit Committee

Howard A. Savin
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Chairman of the Compensation and
Stock Option Committee
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Corporate Headguarters
Comprehensive Care Corporation
204 South Hoover Boulevard, Suite 200
Tampa, Florida 33609

Annual Meeting
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Comprehensive Care Corporation
204 South Hoover Boulevard, Suite 200
Tampa, Florida 33609

Registrar and Transfer Agent
Continental Stock Transfer & Trust Company
17 Battery Place, 8th Floor
New York, New York 10004
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